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We are global manufacturer and the market leader of the highest-quality welding cutting and joining

products Our enduring passion for the development and application of our technologies allows us to

create complete solutions that make our customers more productive and successful We will distinguish

ourselves through an unwavering commitment to our employees and relentless drive to maximize

shareholder value

Who We Are and What We Do

Lincoln Electric is the world leader in the design development and manufacture of arc welding products

robotic arc-welding systems plasma and oxyfuel cutting equipment and has leading global position

in the brazing and soldering alloys market Headquartered in Cleveland Ohio U.S.A Lincoln has

manufacturing locations including operations manufacturing alliances and joint ventures in 21

countries and worldwide network of distributors and sales offices covering more than 160 countries

Lincoln has global workforce of more than 9000

Recognized as The Welding Experts Lincoln provides cutting-edge products and solutions and has long

been pioneer in technology for arc welding consumables and equipment Lincoln
operates

the industrys

most dynamic and comprehensive research and product development program supported by its RD
centers around the world including the David Lincoln Technology Center the most advanced facility

of its kind

Lincoln Electrics products and solutions are playing an important role in the development of industries

and infrastructures around the world wide
variety

of industries
rely on arc welding including

transportation construction fabrication and
energy production In the manufacture of metal products

arc welding applications range from producing consumer appliances to fabricating heavy machinery

and structural steel Arc welding is the dominant joining method for building and other industrial

construction including oil and
gas pipeline fabrication and oil refinery construction
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200 2006

OQILANS iN MILLIONS EXCEPT PEN SHAXE OATA

Net Sales $2479 $2281 $1972

Ne Income 212 203 175

Net Income excluding the effects of non ecornng teins 231 203 171

onalization actions and asset impaiiments

Baic Earnings pci Share 498 4./3 11

Basc Earnings per Share excluding the effects of non 541 4.73 02

recuri ng items rationalization actions and asset impairments

Diluted Earnings per
Share 493 467 4.07

Diluted Earnings per Share excluding the effects of ron 5.36 467 3.98

ecornnq items rationalization actions and asset impairments

Cash Dividends Paid
per

Share of Common Stock 1.00 0.88 0/6

Working Capital 668 658 491

Con emit Ratio 2.9

lotal Assets $1719 $1645 $1395

lotal Shareholders Equity 995 108/ 853

Cash Pmovided by Operations 257 250 119

Return on Invested Capital
18.8% 16.8o /5t
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tncoln Ii en showed its strength in 2008 es en in tumultuous

md declini sg mat ket Whik we st inued to put sue out long

teim str
itegy

of glohal expansion to set impo tant growth matket

segments such is infristiuctute nstt ucnon energy production and

emerging mat kets we wet also able to adj ust our osts to better align

ith ni uket conditions near the nd of the near hilc main raining

sctV srtnng halatim sheet

hrongh if hrst nitu nsotitlis of the ear vs ichies ed solid
gt

owth

in sales and net income driven strong global demand which

en ibled us to tecoup the
rising

matertal osts of the first half of

the veat

lowcv er in lie Gut
Is quarter we felt lie deepen tng impat of

the global financial isis and ecotu nitc slowdow us througltottt the

world \lthough the dow mm rn of the donsesm tc and global economics

was unexpected its its swiftness and seventy again demonsttatcd

ott ahtlt react qtttc
klv and dci isis els with actions to educe costs

and
inipt mc fOe ienc thiougho tt our global operations

ot xatnple we began to inmplcnie sr headcotttit iedttcttons and

dntced ot schedttles th toughout out global opet ariotss in the

latter Of of 2008 atid tmptoved ottt purclsasitsg practtces to take

ads anrage of lower raw tisatc na1 costs itt diet ots Febtetarv 2009

we annomtts eel 0c global workfoi cc edrte dots for atsnitali ed
savutsgs

of approximate1 880 nilliots

nit ts tss rt tn of ni ill ion educ ttots its capital expctsditut is freeie ots salar ise teases sncl \tc nal liii its

and base lmv
iednte ttots for all executive tnanagemetsr hese actiotss svtll help to fitmrhei loss it mmtU cost

strttetttie and bet ret aligts otit bttsttse ss to tlse ntrten weak ecotsomtc cotsditto is

tlse slowdown tow aid th cud of the yeai neolts liecti mc cpot ted ie oid tIes and tic itic otsie its

2008 Otti halatsce sheet rernaitsed si rotsg ss rh tso tset debt

\side from the recotd fitsats ial restults its 2008 the ycat vs as otie its which we ceo dccl otltet achues cmi nts

\Ve gaitseel natiotsal and global recogtsittnn
for out tndu us leadership matsuf Si titt itsg st etsctl

cxc elletsee

On lrtly 29 2008 we svetc ts ileged to welcome Ptcsiclent George Bttsh for vis te out eotpoiatc

hcadquat tcrs atsd tortt of ottr matsetfacrui itsg operations its Oes elatid Ohio in itt
iisg

the fit st tue

piesident has visited out Comsspany he Pt estdc tsr eoivsissc uselecl iuscolus ctssplos cc lot theit lsaid wot Ii

titd the
otsspatsy

lot its
couisperitivcness

atsd sntceess as leaditsg issatsufacture worldsside mat Lets

especially
its rIse cisc rgs segmeists and expot ts his 2006 ilsc onspats eat used tlse Preside mit 8i mm iw aid

Idi exeelleutec its expot rs

Ots tIle satsic do Isat Prcstcleist Bntsls visited itico1is Ohio Goverisot led 8nt ide misc1 liotioicd di

oisspatsy
its olutisbits Ohio as the stares aige Betstness

xporret
of rIte Yam Govet usoi als spoke

at tls grand opetsttsg
esf our tinonsatiots Get icr of xcellenee on Oetohet 20U8

Ctcarn an esdont PC Th xc Va 00 ar



Environment Health Safety
iiuoln 11cm ics indusn leadership usdudts

its coinnutnisnt to improving safety .intl

em uonmentil sustainabilirs

Ihe 0000 squat loot brossufield

renovation project showcases the

ompan compi ehensis solutions

in robotic welding one of our fastest

gioing
niatket segments he

ficility includes tss fully equipped

ohotic sselding labs 20001 square

feet of staging and assembly area

an applications and sets ice lab

classroom facilities and state of

the art auditorium

uI iei in the ear incolu was honored with \Voi Id lass Customer 8etvice

ass froni .Snrt BiiuJw.o ii

iagaz
me

Cite of the ke drivets of our continued success ill be bringing new products

to niaiket and dclivei ing greater
valtie to out customers As the feldiug

sperts svc undeistand that to maintain our lcadetship role in the global arc

elding marketplace sse not onls tnust be the biggest but also the best and

most innos ative We hate become more fdctised and diligent in patent ing the

consttnuahles cquipment and svelding proec sses vs des elop to help

out ctistOnieis

lu tfc
past yeai some of otu most stteeesshil ness products included

he Poss er Ias 300 portable multi process svi ie fecder vs elder ideal

lot
pi

odue tion sselding genei al fabrication construction and training It oIlers

xceptional welding per
foi mane and losser operating cost

he rinser
iv

tractor an addition to our leading Power Was /0k

1000 submerged arc pots er source tee lunology ss hich has become the global

staudtid hu impros ing produc tis it svhile
meeting demanding offshore

.onst tie tion design ci ter ia

TM Pit portable industrial svire feeeler used fdr held construction and

labiie ation
ships

aids and rental companies

Nc st Posser as 00 and \trtoDrivetM R90 coinpac light eight

uckage whic savim izes robot
agility

and
perfor manee

Ness consuinihles products anc packaging such as our nest dccii PakTM Box

hulk svire
pac kaging svith tistomer did en enhancements for is stabihit

ss itlu bettei access and less storage space enhanced labeling for easiei product

ide ufreat ion and ceo friendly 00 recyclable packaging

In iddiriou through our pair ncr ship svi th IAN UC Robotics tel the svoi Id

lai gest
manufieturei of robots ste iutrodtieed an intelligent

robotic welding

soltit ion to the Asian market \lso in conjunction svrth otu AN1 JC partner

Ste prodtie
ccl ness Robotic Welding due anon elI that can he easily moved

Ii otis elassi ooui to lassroons for training the next generation of vs elders It is

In 2008 our emplos cc based
safety

ccilturc

Woikplace ducaniou lifestyle

Discipline celehiared its eighth car of

ssorking thiouphotit our 2lohal
manufacuu

ing platfoi in to impios
nvironrocntal health

md safety ha urn oi kforce

We are reducing otu envionmetital footprint

by muuinizing energy usage it otu lie ilinies

through new and inuos arise
pie grams

\Ve ate also conruuuotisls svoiking to piovide

tutu customers ssitli the most reliable intl

safest prodtiecs
and to he

If
lessen thcii

encigv

costs lot example in
ebiuail

2.019

ammounecel ness .reen Initi ttivc tmas mreness

Piogian to ieduee the ens jionmental impact

of our manufacturing processes
and prod

ucts as well as des elnp prodtrcts th it help

usromei reduce weldin1 Otis mel adhere to

ens ironmeutal standards

All of our machines comply ss ith demanding

quahit standards We updated Stir engine

drives dcii
ing

the ear to compi with new

.8 Environmental Protection Ageu Sian

daids ahead of 2.012 deadline no mattet

wlieie in the world they aie manufucitireel ot

used Our rico picmdncts tie labeled with

Gre en mu tarn logo that Ic irIs states the

equipments gre en aelvau
tage

The Company
created Web site no further expl sin these

initiatives at ss.liueolneleeriie.eom/gieeti

Eriginit Emrritiioris Standard

EPA Par 4/ amp mat

ineolu ilso is ieducing its ens ironmeutal

impact rhiotigh vii ions ineihtds stit Ii us mix

8igrna piojecis no iedtice
scrap

and ssaste

impros rise dffrdiency of mantrfietui ing

processes enhance paper
ineI metal

icevehing

Pt ogi arns remove old or obsolete
eeluiprncnt

and focus on energ effmeiencs and inariufac

tn ring proce insprovenlenns inc oln now

has sixteen 18k nOO certified facilities in

its conninur
rug

dove rowatel in goal of gamuig

the environmental standard for ill of the

ornpanvs flu ilities ssoildssiele

In 2O0 sse completed eunstiucoon of

state of rise art plant ss rib our joint euiur

urnuer in Itukey designed to inia\imize

eneigy efficiency arid mininue waste Ibis

techinolog is also being ineoi pot ateel into our

tic ss sselelumg onsuiriables plant in hennat

India which ssill begin prodtrerton in s4archs

009 State of the irt ens noninental systeints

will he the trariclaid for any uesv cousti tictiou

we impleme rut anvsvhere arotinel the wonlel

he ompans also applied this siandard

for ins nesv Automation enter of xcel

lerscd Ins coopeianion
ssinh snare county and

local
gos etimuients

the
oisipaim reruov tied

and upgraded fmrnier he ass ceftupinc
ut

mauufacttiring plant sshich it had aequiicd

nexi no its world hcaelqoarter anti cons cited

rhie hiowttheld site mto the
eneigu

efhcie tin

autoruatioti center

Lincoln Electric was selected Ohios Large

Business Exporter of the Year as part of the

2008 Ohro Governors Excellence in Exporting

Award program



Lincon Eectric 2008 Annua oport

designed tot the
gt

mx ing
niarker of edue stional instit u000s tr sini

departments schools and other factlities to tes robotic
proeram ntng

iclated to sselding Robotic welding continues to grow iii populai tty

due in
large pat

to the ethical shortage of skilkd labot ombitsed

with
indristry

need to educe labor costs ItSet ClS pi
oduc tivity and

impiove qualtt

As
pat

of our ongoing strategy
to seek aequ sitions that us xpand

our odtict offerings and geogi aphic reach we oniplet ox ituportant

aLqrti it ons it 2008

In \pril Lincoln acqtnred Portugal based ketto em

manufac turer of welding consumables sod
signific ant exuorte

to niaikets thioughotit urope he at qutsirion has xp inded out

manufacturing eapaeits and strengthened out market pos lion in to opt

In Or tohcr we acquiied Bi astak leading Biaiihati suntif it tutc

of brazing pi
oducts his acquisition eontinucs our xpansioii its rh

emerging mat kets of South America and bro rdc tis our offci
trig

of

brazttig pioects

Out utoinauon business bcisefited fi otis the successful
intcgi

utiots

of Vernon ool om panv td Calif on ia based sntifae trite of

coiuiputci
conttolled pipe cit dug eqtuipmciut which wc quited latc us

00 lie addition \ft non tool has expanded ott ubility to
sctppoi

customci in the glob ul mu astruc turc mat leer

Out other achiesemcnts in 2008 included

xpaiisioii
and enhancement of the

logistics
fra true title out

constim shies
platut

in Mentor Ohio

cmi inuation of out Six Sigma pi ogi anus which savc gene atcd

approximatek million in savings in 2008 and 52 imllion sime

2001 More than 680 employ ecs throughout our global en terpi ise hase

participated in Six Sigma ri am iug

Sigtsthcant nivesinients to upgrade and expand oum SAP and cnterpi ise risk mat agc went system tin otighout

our global ope ations

stablishmcnt of leadership iant to the Amci lean Welding Foundation to helo pioniote welding as ricer

and rllcx mate die worldwide sho tage of welders

onttnrted investmc nt in sustainabilitv piogranss to reduce the impact of manufaet itt ing pmoecsses md piochiet

on environnieisrs at ound the cold and eoistin ned advancement of our health and tie iv culture wit bin ow

global orkfo ice

We wete pleased to announce two add rmons to out management team in 2008 Steven ledlti tel tee

President Stiatc and Business Deselopnmcnr and atl Waid Vice President Mergei Acquis tions and

ivestoi Relations Both fill ncwly eteated positions that will he important to the long let crowtls and necess of

lincoln lectrtc Sirs is responsible fot
strategic planning sit ategic usaly sis mel longteini project inatixgenicist



Earl leads our efforts in mergers and acquisitions investor

relations risk management and corporate rekstions X7e look

farward to the contrhutions of hoth of these highly then ted

and dedicated individuals

.A Positi.on of St.rength

While the global economic environment remains uncertain

in 2009 we are determined to meet our challenges from

position of strength and agility We have the largest
and

most efficient global manufacturing platform in the welding

industry Our strong financial position will enable us to

continue to expand our global market presence through

opportunistic investments in product development and

acqwsitions
Our organizational flexibility

commitment to

efficiency and dedication to quality will allow us to quicldy

adapt to changing market conditions and continue providing

industrydeading value to our customers

During his visit to Lincoln Electric President We remain confident in the lonfaterns opportunities

George Bush said the Company proves with
stem mitw from the Fiobal need to utwrade and build new

good investment and good education and Com
pany that treats its workers well that America can mfrastructure and to fill the growing demand for new

compete with anybody anytime anywhere
energy sources Most nations whether they are emerging or

developed recognize the need for lonfaterm investment in

infrastructure and new solutions to meet their
energy requirements The vast majority of these

projects

fiomn bridges and pipelines to offshore
drilling and wind towers require substantial amotmnts of welding

Sitlce Lincoln Electric was founded in 1895 the Company has repeatedly shown its ability to manage

through all kinds of economic cycles The current downturn will confirm our strength and demonstrate

our resolve We are conhdent that Lincoln is in strong position to quickly resume our strong growth

record when global
markets rebound

We intend tt remain true to the vision and philosophy of the Companys fdtn ders John Lincoln and

James Lincoln who stressed that if we are successful in satisfying our customers sve will be rewarded

through profits This commitment has served the Company its employees and its shareholders
very

well

over the years and will continue to do so

thank all of omit stakeholders far contintnng to support the
great

work we are doing at Lincoln Electric

Sit ice rely

xf4Y
John ad Srropki

Chairman President and Chief Exectitive Officer

Ct re off onduct aisd omplCne

Jim mnmoin scu imc No is ml Inst cii in bn in in today lol il onon en onm or it is ome

impomi it Ii it
conip

me and
ompor

ions act om sibly and in complian with fmnu cmal semi mdc nd guidclmn

sn bust
pra

in in we adh mc th hi best mlii
pmte cc and ni ipl chan

plot
ui bun it

cv uc om it flu mu out od of ondn thus
mm mvcm lincoln op ri ion Ionic

it
iii nei finn do his

firm him cm en iron mdii in mm ii solid orpom on ph pmo mci and ii imp uN in our Ii anna item
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1hIdin1x cit

incoln Electric is the worlds leading roan riactur er if

arc welding and cut rritg solutit Os rod holds nrajor

global posit
ron in hr i/ing rod solder

tog allo he

otis
ptrts ear ned this

posit ion Orion 4i tts soc rgth

in RD its global ruanufactur
trig cap tbrlttres and rts

val tic idded approach to the mar ketpl tee

ith in approxtmate lo shire of th billion

global arc welding market iOOlO tort tiR exp rid

its
footprint

outside Nor tli \rru rica to set cttst so rs

growing welding requirements it hated to nsf asrr tie tore

build tq enigy expiotarino oil
prodiicriun

mOo rri

fdbr ic ation and other do et Se ssar kets he ompans

inter national sales have grown at onopottnd as en

annnal tare of 2600 since 2003

ntncoln strong posinon
in the marketplace sterns from variets of unique coonpetinice advantages it offers rite

05t coittplc te line of products itt the indtnstr including hr11 range of welding eqnipnnc st eonstrniabl auto

nation svstetris ctttr ing tools mod hr
acitig

arid dde irtg solutions Out cast prodite toe enables atscoltm to take

soltrtioos based approach to sct\ iog the needs If each and evera customer inc oln also
possesses some of the roost

knowledgeable and well trained welding people itt th indtistry whO It entplov the broad or ts of inc is

to hctiefrt eusto nets

tmstoniei elt tin incoln fTr its welding expet tisc and high qtralit odtmc rs and sets tees ised on the stcst irrd

best technology New welding eqtripomei des eloped svithmn the last five years
tepres

or 00o of time tiiianc

sales 8e are ptotmd of oirr strong and effc rice disiribtrror or ganization ting term drstr rlmittor tt trn
tslrtps

to ho Fm

do asestic ritch inter natiortal markets litce provided trained personnel and high eloerry Iccess to ineolti etmstoii

ers in all fabi nation segments 80 scot with otir highly proP sston tI distr ihtrrron channel to 5ttf ply 05cr gpo0 of

out ptodtrcts
sold atound rhc wt Id The combination of incoins room ative ptodttcts

rod dtsri tbtrtion glob ii

footprmnt
has created an mop tialleled corn ocreral offermg to

capt
ire leading share to welding ctrttmti biazmnt

and soldering

Welding is Li neal component in diverse
aisge

of
ojec is finns

pipelines to powe plants
Air rhitisdance if

os sjot eciristr tier ion projects in kcs mit ke is am orrrmd the svorlcl eqtrirc the high qtial my eqtrm pniscot
and ntsstnnnables

rltat iricoln provides

incolos rank as global
market Lader

cottplecl
with tmtrr sohtirioos selli

rig capability
tin

cltmcls posit
miss tire onip

mn to rake rmmarket share arid tuorperfur in mmmii glcibal ecitsipim
huts Es ii ml ilk Ctmt it sm ye uOemmtlio Cmlvii mimmimemst Out

prospects
rc mssaitm bright fOr cert iris

segrssentts
of the market

Opportunities for long tcrns grow rls arc especially ci ideist in emerging regroiss
of the ivor Id liar are htmildttst rOta

structure energy prodtrctisg regions
that need tc store arid rranspoi their

erscrgv to markers where it is at eded stsd

dec eloped imatiotis tisat ate focusc ott cstorrrsg
mlsei deteriom at

ing
itsfrastrtretine

hricm
easing

cfettsatsd for ahiet imanive
ersergy

scstrrces tlso
pros

ides growth cppsri tmoitics is \5 cling ns lees eooipo

mse mst in tls con tr tier tort of wi tad towers and
it irelea power phi ts .i ocr miii also is leader

mm atm room med as Id iisg

systetsis
which addiess eusiotsiers needs improve rise efhi iericc rechtmce rise labor reqtiirettietst modl

spnos
rho

cttahmti
Of mlserr

projects

irscolo fleet tics
global growth is being fueled

b1
deoratscl for its fit

cdttc rs irs nasaiss cxc
ititig

imsar vets nneittditng

offshore
cltnllttsg pipelines

arid
pm

mills pow en
genie

rariors shsipbttilditig heacv 6mbrme atiots stnnmettmi al stiroomo

nyc arid general steel fabi rear itin

A8CTV Exrrerne Makeover Home Edition design team

selected Lincoln Electric as the showrm exclusive welding

partner Pictured above is longtime show volunteer Jim

Bollinger welding at build last year in New Orleans



lthough enctg pi ices utd demand dccluic in thc lattet half of 2008 Iongtet in
gloss

rh in enetg

ill expand apidlr
hen the

global econons os crc Jo
prepat

foi this
gross th many offshot

di illing
projects

tie already
ttndc construction in alions regions

of the \\ otld and mans more lat
ge

and cliaIletiing projects ii planned Although the near teriIs outlook is cnscertain lot high hical

pt
icc

piotects
the long tel fundanietttals of the offshote consuuction inilnstt remain posins

ith offshorc
projccts

under construct ton oi alread in the
plattn tug stages lItany

offshoi hibric aroi

base solid ordets booked in 2009 When global cc onomies stai Ito rccoet ertergr
demand and

prices

ate cxpccted to accelerate again

tom mohilc offshote
drilling

units to ncsc demands in offshore deepssaret and stthsca ecu pmeu

incoln is cccii ro captule rnaiker share through spc
cific welding solutions des eloped itt

RD and
applications ceutet ai onnd tlte world with focus ott imptos ed qualit and safets at the

highcst ptlt1R it levels lincoln Electric ccenrh added the rniserrM ria tor to its leadtu1 Pocs er

IDE 00010 iihmc
rged arc po Cr ou tcchnologr which oupled cc irIs the ontp tnr

repntatton
fbi high qualit ss elding consumables is ts become the global

startdarcl Jot impioving

dtictis iry schilc nsec ring demanding offshore cottsu tietion design criteria

clded sri uctnies in thc offshote industry include mobile offshore drilling units h\ed plarlorms

cottspliaut towet spars and snhcea stems incoln lectt ie
prodttcrs

address the
specific

nccds of

this iiscltisric foctisiitg on high quality petformanee pi
odttc tiviry safbty atid othei Isallenges posed

bc thc extreme
tentpcratctrc

.sucl deepw.trer conditions of offshoie eotsstrttci ion

Notable iucoln
pi

odttcts cocci in offshore
projects

ineludc Kr o1 stic Is electrodes fbi loss tempera

true ens iroisments ouarc consn mables fbi
higlt srtength

steel applications and Utttershteld low

alloy
Otix oieci wites for demanding producrrc it and rssedlsaisic al cqttirentents ineoln also offei

scs era1 autom trccl welding soltttious that tsseer rise uuicnc challenges
of titis iuclctsrr

Pipclii and Pipm
\u sh sts pieclict rlsat global cleissand foi rsatnt si

gas
cc ill more rhati ri pie over the ttcxt dccacle his has

spni red

ness exploration of
gcts

heicls risat previous1 Is sce beets out oft cteh because of thc ir tentore locations and high

tiansportation costs lincoln piodctcts ate crcicial in the coissti cicrion of crcss cocnstrs ptpcittscs to rranspoit oil

and
gas

frous where it is discocered nsctally its rcusoie arcas of tue world to use nsou populous areas wlscic
it

is rseeded iding eqttipmcnt and cousunsahics ate tised hcrls us rIse eutssti net io
is

cf pipe at its ills tuscl to weld

segrsseuts
of pipe togetisel

when rIm
pipelines

aic installed

An
exaissple

ctf challenging ptpel
irse oust oct ion

project

is rIse Perti
ptoje

isic Is irscitides 08 kiicsinc tei

gas pipeline Ituning horn the Antics usocnstairss to Ilse

Pacific ceais Due to the
Isalleisges

of ngged ret tails

isigh alrittides and isigh wiitds where most of tisc wclcl

ing cs ould take pl.tce the cousunsahies to he used for tisc

project required difibretst eiserssisti to wirisstand risc

ens ii oisnseutai
ehaileisges

irscoin reamed sc ith global

consrt uctoi elsi ist to develop ness sveld
ing cots stills

able solcitiois fbi the
piojeet

he iiscohs oitsttissahle

Rcsdarcls Developistctst cIt
parrisscist

and tise Companys

Apphituiss isgiiseci iisg teaisss des
eiopecf cuniquc

ha

rouseter pre nrc clsaissber to sirssttiate tise issornstaiu envirdtisuaent ite
apphcatiors to rcplic aie risc ciic irorsnscis tal

coisdlii miss cisahied ecisiist and itseohi
cisginec

is in develop cicling scsirition tisat niarelsed rise igist

lisle ciseissisi to rise
project

dcusaisds
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PART

ITEM BUSINESS

General

As used in this report the term Company except as otherwise indicated by the context means Lincoln Electric

Holdings Inc its wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries for which it has controlling interest The

Lincoln Electric Company began operations in 1895 and was incorporated under the laws of the State of Ohio in

1906 During 1998 The Lincoln Electric Company reorganized into holding company structure and Lincoln

Electric Holdings Inc became the publicly-held parent of Lincoln Electric subsidiaries worldwide including The

Lincoln Electric Company

The Company is full-line manufacturer and reseller of welding and cutting products Welding products include arc

welding power sources wire feeding systems robotic welding packages fume extraction equipment consumable

electrodes and fluxes The Companys welding product offering also includes regulators and torches used in oxy
fuel welding and cutting In addition the Company has leading global position in the brazing and soldering alloys

market

The arc welding power sources and wire feeding systems manufactured by the Company range in technology from

basic units used for light manufacturing and maintenance to highly sophisticated robotic applications for high

production welding and fabrication Three primary types of arc welding electrodes are produced coated manual

or stick electrodes solid electrodes produced in coil reel or drum forms for continuous feeding in mechanized

welding and cored electrodes produced in coil form for continuous feeding in mechanized welding

The Company has wholly-owned subsidiaries or joint venture manufacturing facilities located in the United States

Australia Brazil Canada Colombia France Germany Indonesia Italy Mexico the Netherlands Peoples

Republic of China Poland Portugal Spain Taiwan Turkey United Kingdom Venezuela and Vietnam The

Company manages its operations by geographic location and has two reportable segments North America and

Europe and combines all other operating segments as Other Countries Other Countries includes results of

operations for the Companys businesses in Argentina Australia Brazil Colombia Indonesia Mexico Peoples

Republic of China Taiwan Venezuela and Vietnam See Note to the Companys Consolidated Financial

Statements with respect to segment and geographic area information Nearly all of the above facilities are ISO 9001

certified

Customers

The Companys products are sold in both domestic and international markets In North America products are sold

principally through industrial distributors retailers and also directly to users of welding products Outside of North

America the Company has an international sales organization comprised of Company employees and agents who

sell products from the Companys various manufacturing sites to distributors and product users

The Companys major end user markets include

general metal fabrication

power generation and process industry

structural steel construction buildings and bridges

heavy equipment fabrication farming mining and rail

shipbuilding

automotive

pipe mills and pipelines and

offshore oil and gas exploration and extraction

The Company is not dependent on single customer or few customers The loss of any one customer would not

have material adverse effect on its business The Companys business is not seasonal



Competition

Conditions in the arc welding and cutting industry are highly competitive The Company believes it is the worlds

largest manufacturer of consumables and equipment in field of three or four major competitors and numerous

smaller competitors The Company continues to pursue appropriate strategies to heighten its competitiveness in

domestic and international markets which includes positioning low cost manufacturing facilities in most geo

graphical markets Competition in the arc welding and cutting industry is on the basis of brand preference product

quality price performance warranty delivery service and technical support The Company believes its perfor

mance against these factors has contributed to the Companys position as the leader in the industry

Virtually all of the Companys products may be classified as standard commercial articles and are manufactured for

stock The Company believes it has competitive advantage in the marketplace because of its highly trained

technical sales force and the support of its welding research and development staff which allow it to assist the

consumers of its products in optimizing their welding applications The Company utilizes this technical expertise to

present its Guaranteed Cost Reduction Program to end users through which the Company guarantees that the user

will achieve cost savings in its manufacturing process
when it utilizes the Companys products This allows the

Company to introduce its products to new users and to establish and maintain close relationships with its consumers

This close relationship between the technical sales force and the direct consumers together with its supportive

relationship with its distributors who are particularly interested in handling the broad range of the Companys

products is an important element of the Companys market success and valuable asset of the Company

Raw Materials

The principal raw materials essential to the Companys business are various chemicals electronics steel engines

brass copper and aluminum alloys all of which are normally available for purchase in the open market

Patents and Trademarks

The Company holds many valuable patents primarily in arc welding and has increased the application process as

research and development has progressed in both the United States and major international jurisdictions The

Company believes its trademarks are an important asset and aggressively pursues brand management

Environmental Regulations

The Companys facilities are subject to environmental regulations To date compliance with these environmental

regulations has not had material effect on the Companys earnings The Company is ISO 9001 certified at nearly

all facilities worldwide In addition the Company is ISO 14001 certified at most significant manufacturing facilities

in the United States and is working to gain certification at its remaining United States facilities as well as the

remainder of its facilities worldwide

International Operations

The Company conducts significant amount of its business and has number of operating facilities in countries

outside the United States As result the Company is subject to business risks inherent to non-U.S activities

including political uncertainty import and export limitations exchange controls and currency
fluctuations The

Company believes risks related to its foreign operations are mitigated due to the political and economic stability of

the countries in which its largest foreign operations are located

Research and Development

Research activities which the Company believes provide competitive advantage relate to the development of new

products and the improvement of existing products Research activities are Company-sponsored Refer to Note to

the consolidated financial statements with respect to total costs of research and development



Employees

The number of persons employed by the Company worldwide at December 31 2008 was 9329 See Item 10 of

Part III for information regarding the Companys executive officers which is incorporated herein by reference

Website Access

The Companys internet address is www.lincolnelectric.com The Company makes available free of charge on its

website at www.lincolnelectric.com its annual quarterly and current reports as soon as reasonably practicable after

the Company electronically files such material with or furnishes it to the SEC The Company also posts its Code of

Corporate Conduct and Ethics on its website However the information found on the Companys website is not part

of this or any other report

ITEM JA RISK FACTORS

From time to time information we provide statements by our employees or information included in our filings with

the SEC may contain forward-looking statements that are not historical facts Those statements are forward

looking within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Forward-looking statements

and our future performance operating results financial position and liquidity are subject to variety of factors that

could materially affect results including those described below Any forward-looking statements made in this

report or otherwise speak only as of the date of the statement and except as required by law we undertake no

obligation to update those statements Comparisons of results for current and any prior periods are not intended to

express any future trends or indications of future performance unless expressed as such and should only be viewed

as historical data

The risks and uncertainties described below and all of the other information in this report should be carefully

considered These risks and uncertainties are not the only ones we face Additional risks and uncertainties of which

we are currently unaware or that we currently believe to be immaterial may also adversely affect our business

General economic and market conditions may adversely affect the Companys financial condition results

of operations and access to capital markets

The Companys operating results are sensitive to changes in general economic conditions Recessionary economic

cycles higher interest rates inflation higher tax rates and other changes in tax laws or other economic factors could

adversely affect demand for the Companys products The deepening industrial downturn affecting the U.S and

global economies will continue to negatively impact investment activity within key geographic and market

segments served by the Company In addition the continuing financial market turmoil may limit the Companys

access to capital markets There can be no assurances that government responses to the disruptions in the financial

and broader industrial markets will restore market confidence

Availability of and volatility in energy costs or raw material prices may adversely affect our

performance

In the normal course of business we are exposed to market risks related to the availability of and price fluctuations

in the purchase of energy and commodities used in the manufacture of our products primarily steel brass copper

and aluminum alloys electricity and natural gas The availability and prices for raw materials are subject to

volatility and are influenced by worldwide economic conditions speculative action world supply and demand

balances inventory levels availability of substitute materials currency exchange rates our competitors production

costs anticipated or perceived shortages and other factors The price of the type of steel used to manufacture our

products has experienced periods of significant price volatility and has been subject to periodic shortages due to

global economic factors We have also experienced substantial volatility in prices for other raw materials including

metals chemicals and energy costs Our future operating expenses
and margins will be dependent on our ability to

manage the impact of cost volatility Our results of operations may be harmed by shortages of supply and by

increases in prices to the extent those increases can not be passed on to customers



We are co-defendant in litigation alleging manganese induced illness and litigation alleging asbestos

induced illness Liabilities relating to such Litigation could reduce our profitability and impair our

financial condition

At December 31 2008 we were co-defendant in cases alleging manganese induced illness involving claims by

approximately 3028 plaintiffs and co-defendant in cases alleging asbestos induced illness involving claims by

approximately 21020 plaintiffs In each instance we are one of large number of defendants In the manganese

cases the claimants allege that exposure to manganese contained in welding consumables caused the plaintiffs to

develop adverse neurological conditions including condition known as manganism In the asbestos cases the

claimants allege that exposure to asbestos contained in welding consumables caused the plaintiffs to develop

adverse pulmonary diseases including mesothelioma and other lung cancers

Since January 1995 we have been co-defendant in manganese cases that have been resolved as follows 12801

of those claims were dismissed 19 were tried to defense verdicts in favor of us and four were tried to plaintiff

verdicts In addition 13 claims were resolved by agreement for immaterial amounts and one was decided in favor of

us following motion for summary judgment which was reversed by an intermediate appellate court on

November 26 2008 and is the subject of further appellate review Since January 1995 we have been co

defendant in asbestos cases that have been resolved as follows 34460 of those claims were dismissed eleven were

tried to defense verdicts four were tried to plaintiff verdicts one was resolved by agreement for an immaterial

amount and 553 were decided in favor of us following summary judgment motions

Defense costs remain significant The long-term impact of the manganese and asbestos loss contingencies in each

case in the aggregate on operating cash flows and capital markets is difficult to assess particularly since claims are

in many different stages of development and we benefit significantly from cost-sharing with co-defendants and

insurance carriers While we intend to contest these lawsuits vigorously and have applicable insurance relating to

these claims there are several risks and uncertainties that may affect our liability for personal claims relating to

exposure to manganese and asbestos including the future impact of changing cost sharing arrangements or change

in our overall trial experience

Manganese is an essential element of steel and cannot be eliminated from welding consumables Asbestos use in

welding consumables in the U.S ceased in 1981

We may incur material losses and costs as result of product liability claims that may be brought

against us

Our products are used in variety of applications including infrastructure projects such as oil and
gas pipelines and

platforms buildings bridges and power generation facilities the manufacture of transportation and heavy

equipment and machinery and various other construction projects We face risk of
exposure to product liability

claims in the event that accidents or failures on these projects result or are alleged to result in bodily injury or

property damage Further our welding products are designed for use in specific applications and if product is used

inappropriately personal injury or property damage may result For example in the period between 1994 and 2000

we were defendant or co-defendant in 21 lawsuits filed by building owners or insurers in Los Angeles County

California The plaintiffs in those cases alleged that certain buildings affected by the 1994 Northridge earthquake

sustained property damage in part because particular electrode used in the construction of those buildings was

unsuitable for that use In the Northridge cases one case was tried to defense verdict in favor of us 12 were

voluntarily dismissed seven were settled and we received summary judgment in our favor in another

The occurrence of defects in or failures of our products or the misuse of our products in specific applications could

cause termination of customer contracts increased costs and losses to us our customers and other end users We

cannot be assured that we will not experience any material product liability losses in the future or that we will not

incur significant costs to defend those claims Further we cannot be assured that our product liability insurance

coverage will be adequate for any liabilities that we may ultimately incur or that it will continue to be available on

terms acceptable to us



The cydlicality and maturity of the United States arc welding and cutting industry may adversely affect

our performance

The United States arc welding and cutting industry is mature industry that is cyclical in nature The growth of the

domestic arc welding and cutting industry has been and continues to be constrained by factors such as the increased

cost of steel and increased offshore production of fabricated steel structures Overall demand for arc welding and

cutting products is largely determined by the level of capital spending in manufacturing and other industrial sectors

and the welding industry has historically experienced contraction during periods of slowing industrial activity If

economic business and industry conditions deteriorate capital spending in those sectors may be substantially

decreased which could reduce demand for our products our revenues and our results of operations

We may not be able to complete our acquisition strategy or successfully integrate acquired businesses

Part of our business strategy is to pursue targeted business acquisition opportunities including foreign investment

opportunities For example the Company has completed and continues to pursue acquisitions or joint ventures in

the Peoples Republic of China in order to strategically position resources to increase our presence in this growing

market We cannot be certain that we will be successful in pursuing potential acquisition candidates or that the

consequences of any acquisition would be beneficial to us Future acquisitions may involve the expenditure of

significant funds and management time Depending on the nature size and timing of future acquisitions we may be

required to raise additional financing which may not be available to us on acceptable terms Our current operational

cash flow is sufficient to fund our current acquisition plans but significant acquisition would require access to the

capital markets Further we may not be able to successfully integrate any acquired business with our existing

businesses or recognize expected benefits from any completed acquisition

If we cannot continue to develop manufacture and market products that meet customer demands our

revenues and gross margins may suffer

Our continued success depends in part on our ability to continue to meet our customers needs for welding

products through the introduction of innovative new products and the enhancement of existing product design and

performance characteristics We must remain committed to product research and development and customer service

in order to remain competitive Accordingly we may spend proportionately greater amount on research and

development than some of our competitors We cannot be assured that new products or product improvements once

developed will meet with customer acceptance and contribute positively to our operating results or that we will be

able to continue our product development efforts at pace to sustain future growth Further we may lose customers

to our competitors if they demonstrate product design development or manufacturing capabilities superior to ours

The competitive pressures we face could harm our revenue gross margins and prospects

We operate in highly competitive global environment and compete in each of our businesses with other broad line

manufacturers and numerous smaller competitors specializing in particular products We compete primarily on the

basis of brand product quality price performance warranty delivery service and technical support If our

products services support and cost structure do not enable us to compete successfully based on any of those

criteria our operations results and prospects could suffer

Further in the past decade the United States arc welding industry has been subject to increased levels of foreign

competition as low cost imports have become more readily available Our competitive position could also be

harmed if new or emerging competitors become more active in the arc welding business For example while steel

manufacturers traditionally have not been significant competitors in the domestic arc welding industry some

foreign integrated steel producers manufacture selected consumable arc welding products Our sales and results of

operations as well as our plans to expand in some foreign counthes could be harmed by this practice

We conduct our sales and distribution operations on worldwide basis and are subject to the risks

associated with doing business outside the United States

Our long-term strategy is to continue to increase our share in growing international markets particularly Asia with

emphasis in China and India Latin America Eastern Europe and other developing markets There are number of



risks in doing business abroad which may impede our ability to achieve our strategic objectives relating to our

foreign operations Many developing countries like Venezuela have significant degree of political and economic

uncertainty that may impede our ability to implement and achieve our foreign growth objectives International

business subjects us to numerous U.S and foreign laws and regulations including regulations relating to import-

export control technology transfer restrictions repatriation of earnings exchange controls anti-boycott provisions

and anti-bribery laws such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the Organization for Economic Cooperation

and Development Convention Failure by the Company or its sales representatives or agents to comply with these

laws and regulations could result in administrative civil or criminal liabilities all or any
of which could negatively

impact our business and reputation

Moreover social unrest the absence of trained labor pools and the uncertainties associated with entering into joint

ventures or similar arrangements in foreign countries have slowed our business expansion into some developing

economies Our presence in China has been facilitated in part through joint venture agreements with local

organizations While this strategy has allowed us to gain footprint in China while leveraging the experience of

local organizations it also presents corporate governance and management challenges

Our foreign operations also subject us to the risks of international terrorism and hostilities and to foreign currency

risks including exchange rate fluctuations and limits on the repatriation of funds

The share of sales and profits we derive from our international operations and exports from the United States is

significant and growing This trend increases our exposure to the performance of many developing economies in

addition to the developed economies outside of the United States

Our operations depend on maintaining skilled workforce and any interruption in our workforce could

negatively impact our results of operations and financial condition

We are dependent on our highly trained technical sales force and the support of our welding research and

development staff Any interruption of our workforce including interruptions due to unionization efforts changes

in labor relations or shortages of appropriately skilled individuals for our research production and sales forces

could impact our results of operations and financial condition

Our revenues and results of operations may suffer if we cannot continue to enforce the intellectual

property rights on which our business depends or if third parties assert that we violate their intellectual

property rights

We rely upon patent trademark copyright and trade secret laws in the United States and similar laws in foreign

countries as well as agreements with our employees customers suppliers and other third parties to establish and

maintain our intellectual property rights However any of our intellectual property rights could be challenged

invalidated or circumvented or our intellectual property rights may not be sufficient to provide competitive

advantage Further the laws and their application in certain foreign countries do not protect our proprietary rights to

the same extent as U.S laws Accordingly in certain countries we may be unable to protect our proprietary rights

against unauthorized third-party copying or use which could impact our competitive position

Further third parties may claim that we or our customers are infringing upon their intellectual property rights Even

if we believe that those claims are without merit defending those claims and contesting the validity of patents can be

time-consuming and costly Claims of intellectual property infringement also might require us to redesign affected

products enter into costly settlement or license agreements or pay costly damage awards or face temporary or

permanent injunction prohibiting us from manufacturing marketing or selling certain of our products

Our global operations are subject to increasingly complex environmental regulatory requirements

We are subject to increasingly complex environmental regulations affecting international manufacturers including

those related to air and water emissions and waste management Further it is our policy to apply strict standards for

environmental protection to sites inside and outside the United States even when we are not subject to local

government regulations We may incur substantial costs including cleanup costs fines and civil or criminal

sanctions liabilities resulting from third-party property damage or personal injury claims or our products could be



enjoined from entering certain jurisdictions if we were to violate or become liable under environmental laws or if

our products become non-compliant with environmental laws

We also face increasing complexity in our products design and procurement operations as we adjust to new and

future requirements relating to the design production and labeling of our electrical equipment products that are sold

in the European Union The ultimate costs under environmental laws and the timing of these costs are difficult to

predict and liability under some environmental laws relating to contaminated sites can be imposed retroactively

and on joint and several basis

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

The Companys corporate headquarters and principal United States manufacturing facilities are located in the

Cleveland Ohio area Total Cleveland area property consists of 233 acres of which present manufacturing facilities

comprise an area of approximately 2940000 square feet

In addition to the principal facilities in the Cleveland Ohio area the Company operates four other manufacturing

locations in the United States and 32 manufacturing locations including joint ventures in 19 foreign countries the

locations of which are as follows

United States Mason Ohio Gainesville Georgia Santa Fe Springs California

Oceanside California

Australia Sydney

Brazil Sao Paulo Guarulhos

Canada Toronto Mississauga

Colombia Bogota

France Grand-Quevilly

Gennany Essen

Indonesia Cikarang

Italy Bologna Genoa Corsalone

Mexico Mexico City Torreon Tijuana

Netherlands Nijmegen

Peoples Republic of China Shanghai Jining Inner Mongolia Jinzhou Nanjing Zhengzhou

Poland Bielawa Swietochlowice Dzierzoniow

Portugal Lisbon

Spain Barcelona

Taiwan Tainan

Turkey Istanbul

United Kingdom Sheffield Chertsey

Venezuela Maracay

Vietnam Ho Chi Minh City

All properties relating to the Companys Cleveland Ohio headquarters and manufacturing facilities are owned by

the Company In addition the Company maintains operating leases for its distribution centers and many sales

offices throughout the world See Note to the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements with respect to lease

commitments Most of the Companys foreign subsidiaries own manufacturing facilities in the country where they



are located At December 31 2008 $3.7 million of indebtedness was secured by property plant and equipment with

book value of $5.7 million

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is subject from time to time to variety of civil and administrative proceedings arising out of its

normal operations including without limitation product liability claims and health safety and environmental

claims Among such proceedings are the cases described below

At December 31 2008 the Company was co-defendant in cases alleging asbestos induced illness involving claims

by approximately 21020 plaintiffs which is net decrease of 6095 claims from those previously reported In each

instance the Company is one of large number of defendants The asbestos claimants seek compensatory and

punitive damages in most cases for unspecified sums Since January 1995 the Company has been co-defendant

in other similarcases that have been resolved as follows 34460 of those claims were dismissed eleven were tried to

defense verdicts four were tried to plaintiff verdicts one was resolved by agreement for an immaterial amount and

553 were decided in favor of the Company following summary judgment motions

At December 31 2008 the Company was co-defendant in cases alleging manganese induced illness involving

claims by approximately 3028 plaintiffs which is net increase of 684 claims from those previously reported In

each instance the Company is one of large number of defendants The claimants in cases alleging manganese

induced illness seek compensatory and punitive damages in most cases for unspecified sums The claimants allege

that exposure to manganese contained in welding consumables caused the plaintiffs to develop adverse neurological

conditions including condition known as manganism At December 31 2008 cases involving 1651 claimants

were filed in or transferred to federal court where the Judicial Panel on MultiDistrict Litigation has consolidated

these cases for pretrial proceedings in the Northern District of Ohio the MDL Court Plaintiffs have also filed

eight class actions seeking medical monitoring in state courts six of which have been removed and transferred to the

MDL Court motion to strike all class action allegations in those six cases was granted by the MDL Court on

August 2008 The class action complaint filed in Ohio was also dismissed by the plaintiff on August 22 2008

leaving only one potential state court class action In addition plaintiffs filed class action complaint seeking

medical monitoring on behalf of current and former welders in eight states including three states covered by the

single-state class actions in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California This case was

also transferred to the MDL Court motion to certify medical monitoring class related to this case was denied on

September 14 2007 and the 16 individual claimants dismissed their claims on March 20 2008 Since January

1995 the Company has been co-defendant in similar cases that have been resolved as follows 12801 of those

claims were dismissed 19 were tried to defense verdicts in favor of the Company and four were tried to plaintiff

verdicts In addition 13 claims were resolved by agreement for immaterial amounts and one claim was decided in

favor of the Company following summary judgment motion which was reversed by an intermediate appellate

court on November 26 2008 and is the subject of further appellate review On November 20 2008 ajury returned

verdict in one such case against the Company and co-defendant for an aggregate amount of 1.855 million in

damages before applicable insurance Post trial motions are pending The Company intends to appeal any final

judgment On November 26 2008 jury returned verdict in another such case in the MDL Court for the Company

and various co-defendants

On December 13 2006 the Company filed complaint in U.S District Court Northern District of Ohio against

Illinois Tool Works Inc seeking declaratory judgment that eight patents owned by the defendant relating to

certain inverter power sources have not and are not being infringed and that the subject patents are invalid Illinois

Tool Works filed motion to dismiss this action which the Court denied on June 21 2007 On September 2007

the Court stayed the litigation referencing pending reexaminations before the U.S Patent and Trademark Office

On June 17 2008 the Company filed motion to amend its pleadings in the foregoing matter to include several

additional counts including specific allegations of fraud on the U.S Patent and Trademark Office with respect to

portable professional welding machines and resulting monopoly power in that market

ITEM SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to vote of security holders during the quarter ended December 31 2008



PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Companys common shares are traded on The NASDAQ Stock Market under the symbol LECO The number

of record holders of common shares at December 31 2008 was 1809

The total amount of dividends paid in 2008 was $42756000 For 2008 dividends were paid quarterly on

January 15 April 15 July 15 and October 15

Quarterly high and low stock prices and dividends declared for the last two years were

2008 2007

Stock Price
Dividends Stock Price

Dividends

High Low Declared High Low Declared

First quarter $71.48 $53.32 $0.25 $70.19 $58.99 $0.22

Second
quarter 86.97 64.07 0.25 75.75 58.88 0.22

Third quarter 86.47 59.78 0.25 78.09 64.54 0.22

Fourth quarter 65.11 34.27 0.27 86.20 65.23 0.25

Source The NASDAQ Stock Market

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Maximum
Total Number of Number

Shares Repurchased of Shares that May
as Part of Publicly Yet be Purchased

Total Number of Average Price Announced Plans or Under the Plans
Period Shares Repurchased Paid Per Share Programs or Programs

January 1-31 2008 179885 $59.81 179885 4353701

February 1-29 2008 118101 61.59 118101 4235600

September 1-30 2008 75400 67.48 75400 4160200

October 1-31 2008 254500 58.02 254500 3905700
November 1-30 2008 112683 39.49 112683 3793017

Total 740569 $57.17 740569

See Note to the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements
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The following line graph compares the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total shareholder return on

Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc Lincoln common shares against the cumulative total return of the SP
Composite 500 Stock Index SP 500 and the SP 400 MidCap Index SP 400 for the five-year calendar

period commencing January 2004 and ending December 31 2008 This graph assumes that $100 was invested on

December 31 2003 in each of Lincoln common the SP 500 and the SP 400 compatible peer-group
index for

the welding industry in general was not readily available because the industry is comprised of relatively small

number of competitors many of whom either are relatively small pieces of large publicly traded companies or are

privately held

$350

2003 2004 2005

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Lincoln 100 142 167 257 307 224

SP 500 x-- 100 111 116 134 142 90

SP 400 100 116 131 144 156 100

ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

In thousands except per share data

Year Ended December 31

_________ _________
2006 2005 2004

Net sales $1333675

Net income 80596

Basic earnings per share 1.96

Diluted earnings per share 1.94

Cash dividends declared 0.69

Total assets $1059164

Long-term debt 163931

Five Year Performance Comparison

Lincoln Common SP 500 and SP 400 Composite Indices
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$2479131

212286

4.98

4.93

1.02

$1718805

91537

2007

$2280784

202736

4.73

4.67

0.91

$1645296

117329

$1971915

175008

4.11

4.07

0.79

$1394579

113965

$1601190

122306

2.93

2.90

0.73

$1161161

157853
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Results for 2008 include charge of $2447 $1698 after-tax relating to the Companys rationalization programs

that began in the fourth quarter of 2008 designed to align the business to current market conditions Results for 2008

also include $16924 $16615 after-tax in asset impairment charges including $13194 of goodwill and $2388 of

long-lived assets related to two businesses in China with no tax benefit as well as an impairment charge of $1342

$1033 after-tax for intangible assets in North America and Europe See Note to the Companys Consolidated

Financial Statements for further discussion

Results for 2007 include net gain of $188 $107 after-tax relating to the Companys rationalization programs in

Europe See Note to the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion

Results for 2006 include charge of $3478 $3478 after-tax relating to the Companys rationalization programs in

Europe and gain of $9006 $7204 after-tax on the sale of facility in freland See Note to the Companys
Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion

Results for 2005 include charge of $1761 $1303 after-tax relating to the Companys rationalization programs in

Europe one-time state income tax benefit of $1807 net of federal benefit relating to changes in Ohio tax laws

favorable adjustment of $8711 related to the resolution of prior years tax liabilities net favorable tax benefit of

$1146 associated with the repatriation of foreign earnings and gain of $1418 $876 after-tax on the settlement of

legal disputes

Results for 2004 include charge of $2440 $2061 after-tax relating to the Companys rationalization programs in

Europe and $4525 $2828 after-tax in pension settlement provisions accrued base pay bonus and stock

compensation related to the retirement of the Companys past Chairman and CEO

ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSiON AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In thousands except share and per share data

The following discussions of financial condition and results of operations should be read together with Selected

Financial Data the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements and other financial information included

elsewhere in this report This report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties Actual

results may differ materially from those indicated in the forward-looking statements See Risk Factors in Item 1A

for more information regarding forward-looking statements

General

The Company is the worlds largest designer and manufacturer of arc welding and cutting products manufacturing

full line of arc welding equipment consumable welding products and other welding and cutting products

The Company is one of only few worldwide broad line manufacturers of both arc welding equipment and

consumable products Welding products include arc welding power sources wire feeding systems robotic welding

packages fume extraction equipment consumable electrodes and fluxes The Companys welding product offering

also includes regulators and torches used in oxy-fuel welding and cutting In addition the Company has leading

global position in the brazing and soldering alloys market

The Company invests in the research and development of arc welding equipment and consumable products in order

to continue its market leading product offering The Company continues to invest in technologies that improve the

quality and productivity of welding products In addition the Company continues to actively increase its patent

application process in order to secure its technology advantage in the United States and other major international

jurisdictions The Company believes its significant investment in research and development and its highly trained

technical sales force provide competitive advantage in the marketplace

The Companys products are sold in both domestic and international markets In North America products are sold

principally through industrial distributors retailers and also directly to users of welding products Outside of North

America the Company has an international sales organization comprised of Company employees and agents who

sell products from the Companys various manufacturing sites to distributors and product users
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The Companys major end user markets include

general metal fabrication

power generation and process industry

structural steel construction buildings and bridges

heavy equipment fabrication farming mining and rail

shipbuilding

automotive

pipe mills and pipelines and

offshore oil and gas exploration and extraction

The Company has through wholly-owned subsidiaries or joint ventures manufacturing facilities located in the

United States Australia Brazil Canada Colombia France Germany Indonesia Italy Mexico the Netherlands

Peoples Republic of China Poland Portugal Spain Taiwan Turkey United Kingdom Venezuela and Vietnam

The Companys sales and distribution network coupled with its manufacturing facilities are reported as two

separate reportable segments North America and Europe with all other operating segments combined and reported

as Other Countries

The principal raw materials essential to the Companys business are various chemicals electronics steel engines

brass copper and aluminum alloys all of which are normally available for purchase in the open market

The Companys facilities are subject to environmental regulations To date compliance with these environmental

regulations has not had material effect on the Companys earnings The Company is ISO 9001 certified at nearly

all facilities worldwide In addition the Company is ISO 14001 certified at all significant manufacturing facilities in

the United States and is working to gain certification at its remaining United States facilities as well as the

remainder of its facilities worldwide

Key Indicators

Key economic measures relevant to the Company include industrial production trends steel consumption

purchasing manager indices capacity utilization within durable goods manufacturers and consumer confidence

indicators Key industries which provide relative indication of demand drivers to the Company include steel farm

machinery and equipment construction and transportation fabricated metals electrical equipment ship and boat

building defense truck manufacturing energy and railroad equipment Although these measures provide key

information on trends relevant to the Company the Company does not have available more direct correlation of

leading indicators which can provide forward-looking view of demand levels in the markets which ultimately use

the Companys welding products

Key operating measures utilized by the operating units to manage the Company include orders sales inventory and

fill-rates all of which provide key indicators of business trends These measures are reported on various cycles

including daily weekly and monthly depending on the needs established by operating management

Key financial measures utilized by the Companys executive management and operating units in order to evaluate

the results of its business and in understanding key variables impacting the current and future results of the

Company include sales gross profit selling general and administrative expenses earnings before interest and

taxes earnings before interest taxes and bonus operating cash flows and capital expenditures including

applicable ratios such as return on invested capital and average operating working capital to sales These measures

are reviewed at monthly quarterly and annual intervals and compared with historical periods as well as objectives

established by the Board of Directors of the Company
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Results of Operations

The following table shows the Companys results of operations

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Amount of Sales Amount of Sales Amount of Sales

Net sales $2479131 100.0% $2280784 100.0% $1971915 100.0%

Cost of goods sold 1758980 71.0% 1633218 71.6% 1419638 72.0%

Gross profit 720151 29.0% 647566 28.4% 552277 28.0%

Selling general

administrative expenses 405376 16.4% 370122 16.2% 315829 16.0%

Rationalization and asset

impairment charges gain 19371 0.8% 188 0.0% 3478 0.2%

Operating income 295404 11.9% 277632 12.2% 232970 11.8%

Interest income 8845 0.4% 8294 0.4% 5876 0.3%

Equity earnings in affiliates 6034 0.2% 9838 0.4% 7640 0.4%

Other income 1681 0.1% 2823 0.1% 1839 0.1%

Interest expense 12155 0.5% 11430 0.5% 10153 0.5%

Income before income taxes 299809 12.1% 287157 12.6% 238172 12.1%

Income taxes 87523 3.5% 84421 3.7% 63164 3.2%

Net income 212286 8.6% 202736 8.9% 175008 8.9%

2008 Compared to 2007

Net Sales Net sales for 2008 increased 8.7% to $2479131 from $2280784 in 2007 The increase in Net sales

reflects an $88436 3.9% decrease due to volume $176045 7.7% increase due to price $67538 3.0%
increase from acquisitions and $43200 1.9% favorable impact as result of changes in foreign currency

exchange rates Net sales for the North American operations increased 3.6% to $1451333 in 2008 compared to

$1401393 in 2007 This increase reflects decrease of $68860 4.9% due to volume $108886 7.8% increase

due to price and $9425 0.7% increase from acquisitions Net sales for the European operations increased 13.0%

to $576945 in 2008 compared to $510514 in 2007 This increase reflects decrease of $1723 0.3% due to

volume $6821 1.3% increase due to price $29827 5.8% increase from acquisitions and $31506 6.2%
favorable impact as result of changes in foreign currency exchange rates Net sales for Other Countries increased

22.2% to $450853 in 2008 compared to $368877 in 2007 This increase reflects decrease of $17853 4.8% due

to volume $60338 16.4% increase due to price an $11205 3.0% favorable impact as result of changes in

foreign currency exchange rates and $28286 7.7% increase from acquisitions

Gross Profit Gross profit increased 11.2% to $720151 during 2008 compared to $647566 in 2007 As

percentage of net sales Gross profit increased to 29.0% in 2008 from 28.4% in 2007 This increase was primarily

result of favorable pricing leverage and improved operational effectiveness partially offset by volume decreases and

the continuing shift in sales mix to traditionally lower margin geographies and businesses Foreign currency

exchange rates had $10621 favorable impact in 2008

Sales volumes began to decline in the third quarter and the rate of decline accelerated in the fourth quarter The

Company expects declining sales volumes to pressure margins in 2009

Selling General Administrative SGA Expenses SGA expenses increased $35254 9.5% in 2008

compared to 2007 The increase was primarily due to higher selling expenses of $10543 resulting from increased

sales activity incremental selling general and administrative expenses
from acquisitions totaling $9222 higher

bonus expense of $5706 and higher foreign currency
transaction losses of $4381 Foreign currency exchange rates

had $5587 unfavorable impact
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Rationalization andAsset impairment Charges Gain In 2008 the Company recorded $19371 in rationalization

and asset impairment charges This total includes $2447 $1698 after-tax in rationalization charges related to

workforce reductions expected to affect 67 employees in North America and 65 employees in Europe The actions

were taken to align the business to current market conditions Asset impairment charges of $16924 $16615 after-

tax include $15582 with no tax benefit to write off goodwill and write down long-lived assets related to two

businesses in China and $1342 $1033 after-tax to write down intangible assets in North America and Europe

In 2007 the Company recorded net gain of $188 $107 after-tax to rationalization charges due to gain of $816

$735 after-tax related to the liquidation of the Harris Ireland Pension Plan offsetting other charges related to

severance costs covering 66 employees at the Companys facility in Ireland

Interest income Interest income increased to $8845 in 2008 from $8294 in 2007 The increase was result of

higher cash balances partially offset by lower interest rate investments in 2008 when compared to 2007

Equity Earnings in Affiliates Equity earnings in affiliates decreased to $6034 in 2008 from $9838 in 2007 as

result of lower earnings at the Companys joint venture investments in Turkey and Taiwan

Interest Expense Interest expense increased to $12155 in 2008 from $11430 in 2007 as result of lower level

of amortization of the gain associated with previously terminated interest rate swap agreements and higher debt

levels See Note to the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion

Income Taxes Income taxes for 2008 were $87523 on income before income taxes of $299809 an effective rate

of 29.2% compared with income taxes of $84421 on income before income taxes of $287157 or an effective rate

of 29.4% for 2007 The decrease in the effective tax rate for 2008 from 2007 was result of additional utilization of

foreign tax credits from the repatriation of higher-taxed earnings partially offset by non-deductible asset impair

ment charges in China The effective rate for 2008 and 2007 was lower than the Companys statutory rate primarily

because of the utilization of foreign tax credits lower taxes on non-U.S earnings and the utilization of foreign tax

loss carryforwards for which valuation allowances had been previously provided

Net income Net income for 2008 was $212286 compared to $202736 in the prior year Diluted earnings per

share for 2008 were $4.93 compared to $4.67 per share in 2007 Foreign currency exchange rate movements had

$2508 and $3419 favorable effect on net income for 2008 and 2007 respectively

2007 Compared to 2006

Net Sales Net sales for 2007 increased 15.7% to $2280784 from $1971915 in 2006 The increase in Net sales

reflects $134000 6.8% increase due to volume $73469 3.8% increase due to price $37950 1.9%

increase from acquisitions and $63450 3.2% favorable impact as result of changes in foreign currency

exchange rates Net sales for the North American operations increased 7.3% to $1401393 in 2007 compared to

$1305472 in 2006 This increase reflects an increase of $35894 2.7% due to volume and $52309 4.0% due to

price Net sales for the European operations increased 37.1% to $510514 in 2007 compared to $372308 in 2006

This increase reflects an increase of $57070 15.3% due to volume an $8226 2.2% increase due to price

$31990 8.6% increase from acquisitions and $40920 11.0% favorable impact as result of changes in foreign

currency exchange rates Net sales for Other Countries increased 25.4% to $368877 in 2007 compared to $294135

in 2006 This increase reflects an increase of $41036 14.0% due to volume $12934 4.4% increase due to

price $14896 5.0% favorable impact as result of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and $5876

2.0% increase from acquisitions

Gross Profit Gross profit increased 17.3% to $647566 during 2007 compared to $552277 in 2006 As

percentage of net sales Gross profit increased to 28.4% in 2007 from 28.0% in 2006 This increase was primarily

result of favorable leverage on increased volumes in North America and Europe reduction in product liability

costs of $9528 and reduction in retirement benefit costs in the U.S of $5484 This increase was partially offset by

the continuing shift in sales mix to traditionally lower margin geographies and businesses Lower margin

geographies were impacted by pricing pressures
associated with market share growth cost increases and start-up

costs associated with continued capacity expansion Foreign currency exchange rates had $13613 favorable

impact in 2007
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The Company experienced increases in raw material prices including metals and chemicals In addition energy

costs trended higher resulting in higher operating costs including transportation and freight The Company expects

these costs to remain at relatively elevated levels as long as worldwide demand remains high Although the

Company believes number of factors including price increases product mix overhead absorption and its

continuing cost reduction efforts will offset increased costs future margin levels will be dependent on the

Companys ability to manage these cost increases

Selling General Administrative SGA Expenses SGA expenses increased $54293 17.2% in 2007

compared to 2006 The increase was primarily due to an increase of $13393 in general and administrative
expense

compared to 2006 which included the gain of $9006 on the sale of the facility in Ireland In addition the increase

included higher bonus
expense

of $11606 higher selling expenses of $8181 resulting from increased sales activity

and higher incremental selling general and administrative
expenses from acquisitions totaling $6216 Foreign

currency exchange rates had an $8786 unfavorable impact

Rationalization and Asset Impairment Charges Gain In 2007 and 2006 the Company recorded net gain of

$188 $107 after-tax and charge of $3478 $3478 after-tax to rationalization charges respectively Charges in

both years were primarily related to severance costs covering 66 employees at the Companys facility in Ireland

The net gain recorded in 2007 was due to gain of $816 $735 after-tax related to the liquidation of the Harris

Ireland Pension Plan offsetting other charges

Interest Income Interest income increased to $8294 in 2007 from $5876 in 2006 The increase was result of

increases in cash balances and interest rates in 2007 when compared to 2006

Equity Earnings in Affiliates Equity earnings in affiliates increased to $9838 in 2007 from $7640 in 2006 as

result of increased earnings at the Companys joint venture investments in Turkey and Taiwan

Interest Expense Interest expense increased to $11430 in 2007 from $10153 in 2006 as result of higher interest

rates and lower level of amortization of the gain associated with previously terminated interest rate swap

agreements partially offset by lower debt levels in 2007 See Note to the Companys Consolidated Financial

Statements for further discussion

Income Taxes Income taxes for 2007 were $84421 on income before income taxes of $287157 an effective rate

of 29.4% compared with income taxes of $63164 on income before income taxes of $238172 or an effective rate

of 26.5% for 2006 The increase in the effective tax rate for 2007 from 2006 is result of an increase in income

before taxes in higher tax jurisdictions as well as lower level of foreign tax credits utilized in 2007 when compared

with 2006 The effective rate for 2007 and 2006 was lower than the Companys statutory rate primarily because of

the utilization of foreign tax credits lower taxes on non-U.S earnings and the utilization of foreign tax loss

carryforwards for which valuation allowances have been previously provided

Net Income Net income for 2007 was $202736 compared to $175008 in 2006 Diluted earnings per share for

2007 were $4.67 compared to $4.07 per share in 2006 Foreign currency exchange rate movements had $3419 and

$1783 favorable effect on net income for 2007 and 2006 respectively

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Companys cash flow from operations while cyclical has been reliable and consistent The Company has

relatively unrestricted access to capital markets Operational cash flow is key driver of liquidity providing cash

and access to capital markets In assessing liquidity the Company reviews working capital measurements to define

areas of improvement Management anticipates the Company will be able to satisfy cash requirements for its

ongoing businesses for the foreseeable future primarily with cash generated by operations existing cash balances

and if necessary borrowings under its existing credit facilities
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The following table reflects changes in key cash flow measures

Year Ended December 31 Change

2008 2007 2006 2008 vs 2007 2007 vs 2006

Cash provided by operating activities 257449 $249832 $118680 7617 $131152

Cash used by investing activities 115800 79705 89715 36095 10010

Capital expenditures 72426 61633 76002 10793 14369

Acquisitions of businesses net of cash

acquired 44036 18773 25504 25263 6731

Cash used by financing activities 67741 77586 17729 9845 59857

Amounts due banks net 5551 2720 115 2831 2835

Payments on long-term borrowings 1033 40142 3147 39109 36995

Proceeds from exercise of stock options 7201 8644 13618 1443 4974

Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 3728 4289 5243 561 954

Purchase of shares for treasury 42337 15459 126 26878 15333

Cash dividends paid to shareholders 42756 37744 32275 5012 5469

Increase in Cash and cash equivalents 66950 97170 12205 30220 84965

Cash and cash equivalents increased 30.8% or $66950 to $284332 as of December 31 2008 from $217382 as of

December 31 2007 This compares to $97170 increase in cash and cash equivalents during 2007

Cash provided by operating activities for 2008 increased $7617 from 2007 The increase was primarily related to an

increase in net income excluding the non-cash asset impairment charges and reduction in accounts receivable

partially offset by an increase in inventory levels and decrease in accounts payable Average operating working

capital to sales was 21.0% at December 31 2008 compared to 23.5% at December 31 2007 Days sales in inventory

increased to 115.8 days at December 31 2008 from 101.2 days at December 31 2007 Accounts receivable days

decreased to 55.0 days at December 31 2008 from 56.9 days at December 31 2007 Average days in accounts

payable decreased to 32.1 days at December 31 2008 from 36.2 days at December 31 2007

Cash used by investing activities increased by $36095 for 2008 compared to 2007 Cash used in the acquisition of

businesses in 2008 increased $25263 from 2007 Capital expenditures during 2008 were $72426 $10793

increase from 2007 The Company anticipates capital expenditures in 2009 in the range of $45000 $55000

Anticipated capital expenditures reflect plans to improve operational effectiveness and the Companys continuing

international expansion Management critically evaluates all proposed capital expenditures and requires each

project to increase efficiency reduce costs promote business growth or to improve the overall safety and

environmental conditions of the Companys facilities Management does not currently anticipate any unusual

future cash outlays relating to capital expenditures

The Company has investments in Venezuela which currently require the approval of government agency to

convert local currency to U.S dollars at official government rates Government approval for currency
conversion to

satisfy U.S dollar liabilities to foreign suppliers including payables to Lincoln affiliates has lagged payment due

dates from time to time in the past resulting in higher cash balances and higher past due U.S dollar payables within

our Venezuelan subsidiary If the Company had settled its Venezuelan subsidiarys U.S dollar liabilities using

unofficial parallel currency exchange mechanisms as of December 31 2008 it would have resulted in currency

exchange loss of approximately $808
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Cash used by financing activities for 2008 decreased $9845 from 2007 The decrease was primarily due to the

$40000 repayment of the Companys Series Senior Unsecured Notes upon maturity in 2007 partially offset by an

increase of $26878 in purchases of the Companys common stock in 2008 versus 2007

The Companys debt levels increased from $129815 at December 31 2007 to $142230 at December 31 2008

Debt to total capitalization increased to 12.5% at December 31 2008 from 10.7% at December 31 2007

The Companys Board of Directors authorized share repurchase programs for up to 15 million shares of the

Companys common stock During 2008 the Company purchased 740569 shares of its common stock on the open

market at cost of $42337 for weighted average cost of $57.17 per share Total shares purchased through the share

repurchase programs were 11206983 shares at cost of $274188 for weighted average cost of $24.47 per share

through December 31 2008

total of $42756 in dividends was paid during 2008 In January 2009 the Company paid quarterly cash dividend

of $0.27 cents per share or $11444 to shareholders of record on December 31 2008

Rationalization and Asset Impairment

In the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company recorded rationalization charges of $2447 pre-tax and asset

impairment charges totaling $16924 pre-tax that are recognized on the income statement under the caption

Rationalization and asset impairment charges gain

The Company took various actions designed to align resources to current market conditions during the fourth

quarter of 2008 The actions are expected to affect 65 employees in various European businesses and 67 employees

in North American businesses The implementation of these actions will be substantially completed by March 31

2009 The Company expects the total cost of these actions to be $2746 pre-tax of which $2447 pre-tax was

recorded at December 31 2008 The costs relate primarily to employee severance costs that will be paid by the end

of 2009

The Company is taking additional cost cutting measures throughout its global operations including voluntary

separation incentive program covering certain U.S.-based employees as announced on February 2009 The

Company expects to record pre-tax rationalization charge between $10 million and $12 million in the first quarter

of 2009

In the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company determined that poor operating results and dampened economic

outlook indicated the potential for impairment at two of its businesses in China Impairment testing determined that

the carrying value of long-lived assets exceeded fair value at one of these businesses and the Company recorded

charge of $2388 pre-tax In addition the carrying value of goodwill at both of these businesses exceeded the

implied value of goodwill and the Company recorded charge of $13194 pre-tax

The Company also tested indefinite-lived intangible assets and determined that the carrying value of certain

intangible assets in Europe and North America exceeded fair value As result the Company recorded charges of

$524 pre-tax and $818 pre-tax respectively

In 2005 the Company committed to plan to rationalize manufacturing operations the Ireland Rationalization

at Harris Calorific Limited Harris Ireland In connection with the Ireland Rationalization the Company

transferred all manufacturing from Harris Ireland to lower cost facility in Eastern Europe and in 2006 sold the

facility in Ireland for gain of $9006 pre-tax which is reflected in Selling general and administrative expenses

total of 66 employees were impacted by the Ireland Rationalization

The Company incurred total of $3920 pre-tax in charges related to this plan of which gain of $188 pre-tax

was recorded in 2007 and charges of $3597 pre-tax and $511 pre-tax were recorded in 2006 and 2005

respectively Charges incurred relate to employee severance costs equipment relocation employee retention and

professional services As of December 31 2007 all rationalization activities were essentially completed The

Company expects to receive approximately $1944 in cash receipts during 2009 upon completion of the liquidation

of the Harris Ireland Pension Plan
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Acquisitions

On October 2008 the Company acquired 90% interest in leading Brazilian manufacturer of brazing products

for approximately $24000 in cash and assumed debt The newly acquired company based in Sao Paulo will be

operated as Harris Soldas Especiais S.A This acquisition expands the Companys brazing product line and

increases the Companys presence
in the South American market Annual sales at the time of the acquisition were

approximately $30000

On April 2008 the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of Electro-Arco S.A Electro-Arco

privately held manufacturer of welding consumables headquartered near Lisbon Portugal for approximately

$24000 in cash and assumed debt This acquisition adds to the Companys European consumables manufacturing

capacity and widens the Companys commercial presence in Western Europe Annual sales at the time of the

acquisition were approximately $40000

On November 30 2007 the Company acquired the assets and business of Vernon Tool Company Ltd Vernon

Tool privately held manufacturer of computer-controlled pipe cutting equipment used for precision fabrication

purposes headquartered near San Diego California for approximately $12434 in cash This acquisition adds to the

Companys ability to support its customers in the growing market for infrastructure development Annual sales at

the time of the acquisition were approximately $9000

On November 29 2007 the Company announced that it had entered into majority-owned joint venture with

Zhengzhou Heli Welding Materials Company Ltd Zhengzhou Heli privately held manufacturer of subarc

flux based in Zhengzhou China The Company has contributed $11700 to Zhengzhou Heli Annual sales at the

time of the acquisition were approximately $8000

On July 20 2007 the Company acquired Nanjing Kuang Tai Welding Materials Company Ltd Nanjing
manufacturer of stick electrode products based in Nanjing China for approximately $4245 in cash and assumed

debt The Company previously owned 35% of Nanjing indirectly through its investment in Kuang Tai Metal

Industrial Company Ltd Annual sales at the time of the acquisition were approximately $10000

On March 30 2007 the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of Spawmet Sp 0.0 Spawmet
privately held manufacturer of welding consumables headquartered near Katowice Poland for approximately

$5000 in cash This acquisition provides the Company with portfolio of stick electrode products and the Company

expects this acquisition to enhance its market position by broadening its distributor network in Poland and Eastern

Europe Annual sales at the time of the acquisition were approximately $5000

On October 31 2006 the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of Metrode Products Ltd Metrode

privately held manufacturer of specialty welding consumables headquartered near London England for approx

imately $25000 in cash The Company expects this acquisition to provide high quality innovative solutions for

many high-end specialty applications including the power generation and petrochemical industries Annual sales at

the time of acquisition were approximately $25000

The Company continues to expand globally and periodically looks at transactions that would involve significant

investments The Company can fund its global expansion plans with operational cash flow but significant

acquisition may require access to capital markets in particular the public and/or private bond market as well as the

syndicated bank loan market The Companys financing strategy is to fund itself at the lowest after-tax cost of

funding Where possible the Company utilizes operational cash flows and raises capital in the most efficient

market usually the U.S and then lends funds to the specific subsidiary that requires funding If additional

acquisitions providing appropriate financial benefits become available additional expenditures may be made

Acquired companies are included in the Companys consolidated financial statements as of the date of acquisition

Debt

During March 2002 the Company issued Senior Unsecured Notes the Notes totaling $150000 through private

placement The Notes have original maturities ranging from five to ten years
with weighted average interest rate of

6.1% and an average tenure of eight years Interest is payable semi-annually in March and September The proceeds

are being used for general corporate purposes including acquisitions The proceeds are generally invested in short
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term highly liquid investments The Notes contain certain affirmative and negative covenants including restric

tions on asset dispositions and financial covenants interest coverage and funded debt-to-EBITDA as defined in the

Notes Agreement ratios As of December 31 2008 the Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants

During March 2007 the Company repaid the $40000 Series Notes which had matured reducing the total balance

outstanding of the Notes to $110000

The maturity and interest rates of the Notes outstanding at December 31 2008 are as follow in thousands

Amount Due Matures Interest Rate

Series $30000 March 2009 5.89%

Series $80000 March 2012 6.36%

During March 2002 the Company entered into floating rate interest rate swap agreements totaling $80000 to

convert portion of the Notes outstanding from fixed to floating rates These swaps were designated as fair value

hedges and as such the gain or loss on the derivative instrument as well as the offsetting gain or loss on the hedged

item were recognized in earnings Net payments or receipts under these agreements were recognized as adjust

ments to interest expense In May 2003 these swap agreements were terminated The gain of $10613 on the

termination of these swaps was deferred and is being amortized as an offset to interest expense over the remaining

life of the Notes The amortization of this gain reduced interest expense by $958 in 2008 $1121 in 2007 and $2117

in 2006 and is expected to reduce annual interest expense by $313 in 2009 At December 31 2008 $755 remains to

be amortized of which $107 is recorded in Current portion of long-term debt and $648 is recorded in Long-term

debt less current portion respectively

During July 2003 and April 2004 the Company entered into various floating rate interest rate swap agreements

totaling $110000 to convert portion of the Notes outstanding from fixed to floating rates based on the London

Inter-Bank Offered Rate LIBOR plus spread of between 179.75 and 226.50 basis points The variable rates are

reset every six months at which time payment or receipt of interest will be settled These swaps are designated and

qualify as fair value hedges and as such the gain or loss on the derivative instrument as well as the offsetting gain

or loss on the hedged item are recognized in earnings Net payments or receipts under these agreements are

recognized as adjustments to interest expense

The fair value of the swaps is recorded in Other current assets and Other non-current assets with corresponding

offsets in Current portion of long-term debt and Long-term debt less current portion respectively The fair

value of these swaps at December 31 2008 and 2007 was an asset of $6148 and $762 respectively Swaps have

increased the value of the Series Notes from $30000 to $30144 and the Series Notes from $80000 to $86759

as of December 31 2008 The weighted average effective rate on the Notes net of the impact of swaps was 4.6% for

2008

On February 20 2009 the Company terminated swaps with notional value of $80000 and realized gain of

$5079 This gain will be deferred and amortized over the remaining life of the Series Note The amortization of

this gain is expected to reduce interest expense by $1400 in 2009

Revolving Credit Agreement

The Company has $175000 five-year revolving Credit Agreement expiring in December 2009 The Credit

Agreement may be used for general corporate purposes and may be increased subject to certain conditions by an

additional amount up to $75000 The interest rate on borrowings under the Credit Agreement is based on either

LIBOR plus spread based on the Companys leverage ratio or the prime rate at the Companys election

quarterly facility fee is payable based upon the daily aggregate amount of commitments and the Companys

leverage ratio The Credit Agreement contains affirmative and negative covenants including limitations on the

Company with respect to indebtedness liens investments distributions mergers and acquisitions dispositions of

assets subordinated debt and transactions with affiliates As of December 31 2008 there were no borrowings under

the Credit Agreement The Company expects to replace the Credit Agreement prior to its expiration in December

2009
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Short-term Borrowings

The Companys short-term borrowings included in Amounts due banks were $19436 and $11581 at Decem

ber 31 2008 and 2007 respectively and represent the borrowings of foreign subsidiaries at weighted average

interest rates of 22.78% and 14.00% respectively

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The Companys contractual obligations and commercial commitments as defined by Section 13j of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as of December 31 2008 are as follows in thousands

Payments Due By Period

2010 to 2012 to 2014 and

Total 2009 2011 2013 Beyond

Long-term debt $112240 $30177 688 $80264 $1111

Interest on long-term debt 13175 4211 6761 2092 111

Capital lease obligations 3651 936 1914 670 131

Short-term debt 19436 19436

Interest on short-term debt 2543 2543

Operating leases 35893 11045 11887 6775 6186

Total contractual cash obligations $186938 $68348 $21250 $89801 $7539

As of December 31 2008 there were $34183 of tax liabilities related to unrecognized tax benefits Because of the

high degree of uncertainty regarding the timing of future cash outflows associated with these liabilities the

Company is unable to estimate the years
in which settlement will occur with the respective taxing authorities

The Company expects to contribute $30000 to the U.S pension plans in 2009

The Company has provided guarantee on loans for an unconsolidated joint venture of approximately $6733 at

December 31 2008 The guarantee is provided on four separate loan agreements Two loans are for $2000 each

one which matures in March 2009 and the other maturing in May 2009 Two loans mature in July 2010 one for

$1806 and the other for $927 The loans were undertaken to fund the joint ventures working capital and capital

expansion needs The Company would become liable for any unpaid principal and accrued interest if the joint

venture were to default on payment at the respective maturity dates The Company believes the likelihood is remote

that material payment will be required under these arrangements because of the current financial condition of the

joint venture

Stock-Based Compensation

On April 28 2006 the shareholders of the Company approved the 2006 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan as

amended EPI Plan which replaces the 1998 Stock Plan as amended and restated in May 2003 The EPI Plan

provides for the granting of options appreciation rights restricted shares restricted stock units and performance-

based awards up to an additional 3000000 of the Companys common shares In addition on April 28 2006 the

shareholders of the Company approved the 2006 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors as amended Director

Plan which replaces the Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors adopted in 2000 The Director Plan

provides for the granting of options restricted shares and restricted stock units up to an additional 300000 of the

Companys common shares

There were 316264 268854 and 241818 options and restricted shares granted under these plans during 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively The Company issued 235650 348450 and 561218 shares of common stock from treasury

upon exercise of employee stock options during 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The Company issued

8411 shares of common stock from authorized but unissued shares upon vesting of deferred shares during 2006

SFAS 123R Share-Based Payment requires all share-based payments to employees including grants of

employee stock options to be recognized in the income statement based on their fair values The Company adopted
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SFAS 123R on January 2006 using the modified-prospective method The adoption of this standard did not have

material impact on the Companys financial statements as the Company adopted fair value accounting under

SFAS 123 on January 2003

Expense is recognized for all awards of stock-based compensation by allocating the aggregate grant date fair value

over the vesting period No
expense

is recognized for any stock options restricted or deferred shares ultimately

forfeited because recipients fail to meet vesting requirements Total stock-based compensation expense recognized

in the consolidated statements of income for 20082007 and 2006 was $4738 $4679 and $4217 respectively The

related tax benefit for 2008 2007 and 2006 was $1793 $1789 and $1612 respectively

As of December 31 2008 total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to nonvested stock options

and restricted shares was $9371 which is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of

approximately 37 months

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding at December 31 2008 based on the Companys closing stock

price of $50.93 as of the last business day of the period ended December 31 2008 which would have been received

by the optionees had all options been exercised on that date was $19423 The aggregate intrinsic value of options

exercisable at December 31 2008 based on the Companys closing stock price of $50.93 as of the last business day

of the period ended December 31 2008 which would have been received by the optionees had all options been

exercised on that date was $16890 The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during 2008 and 2007 was

$10366 and $15413 respectively Intrinsic value is the amount by which the fair value of the underlying stock

exceeds the exercise price of the options

Product Liability Expense

Product liability expenses have been significant particularly with respect to welding fume claims Costs incurred

are volatile and are largely related to trial activity The costs associated with these claims are predominantly defense

costs which are recognized in the periods incurred These expenditures increased $621 in 2008 compared to 2007

See Note to the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion

The long-term impact of the welding fume loss contingency in the aggregate on operating cash flows and access to

capital markets is difficult to assess particularly since claims are in many different stages of development and the

Company benefits significantly from cost sharing with co-defendants and insurance carriers Moreover the

Company has been largely successful to date in its defense of these claims and indemnity payments have been

immaterial If cost sharing dissipates for some currently unforeseen reason or the Companys trial experience

changes overall it is possible on longer term basis that the cost of resolving this loss contingency could materially

reduce the Companys operating results and cash flow and restrict capital market access

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

The Company utilizes letters of credit to back certain payment and performance obligations Letters of credit are

subject to limits based on amounts outstanding under the Companys Credit Agreement The Company has also

provided guarantee on loans for an unconsolidated joint venture of approximately $6733 at December 31 2008

The Company believes the likelihood is remote that material payment will be required under this arrangement

because of the current financial condition of the joint venture

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2008 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Staff Position 132R-i FSP
FAS 132R-i Employers Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets an amendment of

SFAS 132R This standard requires disclosure about an entitys investment policies and strategies the categories

of plan assets concentrations of credit risk and fair value measurements of plan assets The standard is effective for

fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 The Company does not expect the adoption of FSP FAS 132R-i to

have significant impact on its financial statements

In November 2008 the Emerging Issues Task Force issued Issue 08-6 EITF 08-06 Equily Method Investment

Accounting Considerations This Issue addresses the impact that SFAS 141R and SFAS 160 might have on the
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accounting for equity method investments including how the initial carrying value of an equity method investment

should be determined how it should be tested for impairment and how changes in classification from equity

method to cost method should be treated The Issue is to be implemented prospectively
and is effective for fiscal

years beginning after December 15 2008 The Company does not expect the adoption of EITF 08-06 to have

significant impact on its financial statements

In May 2008 the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS 162 The Hierarchy of

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles SFAS 162 identifies the sources of accounting principles and the

framework for selecting the principles to be used in the preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental

entities that are presented in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles GAAP SFAS 162

directs the GAAP hierarchy to the entity not the independent auditors as the entity is responsible for selecting

accounting principles for financial statements that are presented in conformity with GAAP SFAS 162 is effective

60 days following the SECs approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to remove

the GAAP hierarchy from the auditing standards The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 162 to have

significant impact on its financial statements

In April 2008 FASB Staff Position 142-3 Determination of the Useful Lfe of Intangible Assets FSP 142-3 was

issued This standard amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions

used to determine the useful life of recognized intangible asset under SFAS 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets FSP 142-3 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008

and interim periods within those fiscal years Early adoption is prohibited FSP 142-3 applies prospectively to

intangible assets acquired after adoption The Company does not expect the adoption of FSP 142-3 to have

significant impact on its financial statements

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities an

amendment of SFAS 133 SFAS 161 requires disclosures of how and why an entity uses derivative instruments how

derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for and how derivative instruments and related

hedged items affect an entitys financial position financial performance and cash flows SFAS 161 is effective for

fiscal years beginning after November 15 2008 with early adoption permitted The Company does not expect the

adoption of SFAS 161 to have significant impact on its financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements

which is an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No ARB 51 SFAS 160 clarifies that noncontrolling

interest in subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in the

consolidated financial statements SFAS 160 changes the way the consolidated income statement is presented
thus

requiring consolidated net income to be reported at amounts that include the amounts attributable to both parent and

the noncontrolling interest SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years

beginning on or after December 15 2008 The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 160 to have

significant impact on its financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS 141 revised 2007 Business Combinations SFAS 14 1R replaces

SFAS 141 Business Combinations SFAS 141R retains the fundamental requirements in SFAS 141 that the

acquisition method of accounting which SFAS 141 called the purchase method be used for all business

combinations and for an acquirer to be identified for each business combination SFAS 14 1R defines the acquirer

as the entity that obtains control of one or more businesses in the business combination and establishes the

acquisition date as the date that the acquirer achieves control SFAS 14 1R requires an acquirer to recognize the

assets acquired the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date

measured at their fair values as of that date with limited exceptions specified in the statement SFAS 14 1R applies

prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual

reporting period beginning on or after December 15 2008

In February 2007 the FASB issued SPAS 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities Including an Amendment of SFAS 115 which permits entities to choose to measure many financial

instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value

Unrealized gains and losses arising subsequent to adoption are reported in earnings SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal
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years beginning after November 15 2007 The Company adopted this statement as of January 2008 and elected

not to apply the fair value option to any of its financial instruments

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS 157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS 157 defines fair value
establishes framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements
SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements rather it applies under existing accounting

pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after November 15 2007 The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 157 related to financial assets and
liabilities on January 2008 See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion

In July 2006 the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No FIN 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes an interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 FIN 48 is effective for fiscal

years beginning after

December 15 2006 The Company adopted FIN 48 as of January 2007 See Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for further discussion

Critical Accounting Policies

The Companys consolidated financial statements are based on the selection and application of significant

accounting policies which require management to make estimates and assumptions These estimates and

assumptions are reviewed periodically by management and compared to historical trends to determine the accuracy
of estimates and assumptions used If warranted these estimates and assumptions may be changed as current trends

are assessed and updated Historically the Companys estimates have been determined to be reasonable No
material changes to the Companys accounting policies were made during 2008 The Company believes the

following are some of the more critical judgment areas in the application of its accounting policies that affect its

financial condition and results of operations

Legal And Tax Contingencies

The Company like other manufacturers is subject from time to time to variety of civil and administrative

proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business Such claims and litigation include without limitation

product liability claims and health safety and environmental claims some of which relate to cases alleging asbestos

and manganese-induced illnesses The costs associated with these claims are predominantly defense costs which
are recognized in the periods incurred Insurance reimbursements mitigate these costs and where reimbursements

are probable they are recognized in the applicable period With
respect to costs other than defense costs i.e for

liability and/or settlement or other resolution reserves are recorded when it is probable that the contingencies will

have an unfavorable outcome The Company accrues its best estimate of the probable costs after review of the

facts with management and counsel and taking into account past experience If an unfavorable outcome is

determined to be reasonably possible but not probable or if the amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated
disclosure is provided for material claims or litigation Many of the current cases are in differing procedural stages
and information on the circumstances of each claimant which forms the basis for judgments as to the validity or
ultimate disposition of such actions will vary greatly Therefore in many situations range of possible losses

cannot be made Reserves are adjusted as facts and circumstances change and related management assessments of
the underlying merits and the likelihood of outcomes change Moreover reserves only cover identified and/or
asserted claims Future claims could therefore give rise to increases to such reserves See Note to the Companys
Consolidated Financial Statements and the Legal Proceedings section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for

further discussion of legal contingencies

The Company is subject to taxation from U.S federal state municipal and international jurisdictions The
calculation of current income tax expense is based on the best information available and involves significant

management judgment The actual income tax liability for each jurisdiction in any year can in some instances be

ultimately determined several years after the financial statements are published

The Company maintains reserves for estimated income tax exposures for many jurisdictions Exposures are settled

primarily through the completion of audits within each individual tax jurisdiction or the closing of statute of

limitation Exposures can also be affected by changes in applicable tax law or other factors which may cause
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management to believe revision of past estimates is appropriate Management believes that an appropriate liability

has been established for income tax exposures however actual results may materially differ from these estimates

Deferred Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized at currently enacted tax rates for temporary differences between the financial

reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards The

Company does not provide deferred income taxes on unremitted earnings of certain non-U.S subsidiaries which are

deemed permanently reinvested It is not practicable to calculate the deferred taxes associated with the remittance of

these earnings Deferred income taxes of $285 have been provided on earnings of $1831 that are not expected to be

permanently
reinvested At December 31 2008 the Company had approximately $131090 of gross deferred tax

assets related to deductible temporary differences and tax loss and credit carryforwards which may reduce taxable

income in future years

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets the Company assesses whether it is more likely than not that

portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized The Company considers the scheduled reversal of

deferred tax liabilities tax planning strategies and projected future taxable income in making this assessment At

December 31 2008 valuation allowance of $18295 was recorded against these deferred tax assets based on this

assessment The Company believes it is more likely than not that the tax benefit of the remaining net deferred tax

assets will be realized The amount of net deferred tax assets considered realizable could be increased or reduced in

the future if the Companys assessment of future taxable income or tax planning strategies changes

Pensions

The Company maintains number of defined benefit and defined contribution plans to provide retirement benefits

for employees in the U.S as well as employees outside the U.S These plans are maintained and contributions are

made in accordance with the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 ERISA local statutory law or

as determined by the Board of Directors The plans generally provide benefits based upon years
of service and

compensation Pension plans are funded except for domestic non-qualified pension plan for certain key employees

and certain foreign plans

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other

Postretirement Plans an amendment of FASB Statements No 87 88 106 and 132R SFAS 158 requires

companies to recognize the funded status of benefit plan as the difference between plan assets at fair value and the

projected
benefit obligation Unrecognized gains or losses and prior service costs as well as the transition asset or

obligation remaining from the initial application of Statements 87 and 106 will be recognized in the balance sheet

net of tax as component of Accumulated other comprehensive loss and will subsequently be recognized as

components of net periodic
benefit cost pursuant

to the recognition and amortization provisions of those State

ments In addition SFAS 158 requires additional disclosures about the future effects on net periodic benefit cost that

arise from the delayed recognition of gains or losses prior service costs or credits and transition assets or

obligations SFAS 158 also requires that defined benefit plan assets and obligations be measured as of the date of the

employers fiscal year-end balance sheet The recognition and disclosure provisions of SPAS 158 are effective for

fiscal years ending after December 15 2006 The requirement to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of

the date of the employers fiscal year-end balance sheet is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15 2008

The Company adopted SPAS 158 as of December 31 2006 The adoption of SFAS 158 had no impact on the

measurement date as the Company had historically measured the plan assets and benefit obligations of its pension

and other postretirement plans as of December 31 See Note Ito the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements

for further discussion

As of December 31 2006 the Company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions
of SFAS 158 As result

of adopting SPAS 158 the Company recorded liabilities equal to the underfunded status of defined benefit plans and

assets equal to the overfunded status of certain defined benefit plans
measured as the difference between the fair

value of plan assets and the projected benefit obligation
As of December 31 2008 December 31 2007 and

December 31 2006 the Company recognized liabilities of $191408 $32954 and $34900 respectively prepaid
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assets of $2716 $48897 and $16773 respectively and also recognized accumulated other comprehensive loss of

$194696 $52274 and $69978 after-tax respectively for its defined benefit pension plans

substantial portion of the Companys pension amounts relates to its defined benefit plan in the United States The
market-related value of plan assets is determined by fair values at December 31

significant element in determining the Companys pension expense is the expected return on plan assets At the
end of each year the expected return on plan assets is determined based on the weighted average expected return of
the various asset classes in the plans portfolio and the targeted allocation of plan assets The asset class return is

developed using historical asset return performance as well as current market conditions such as inflation interest

rates and equity market performance The Company determined this rate to be 8.25% for its U.S plans at

December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The assumed long-term rate of return on assets is applied to the market
value of plan assets This produces the expected return on plan assets included in pension expense The difference
between this expected return and the actual return on plan assets is deferred and amortized over the average
remaining service period of active employees expected to receive benefits under the plan The amortization of the
net deferral of past losses will increase future pension expense During 2008 investment returns in the Companys
U.S pension plans were decline of 22.2% compared to an increase of 8.4% in 2007 25 basis point change in the

expected return on plan assets would increase or decrease pension expense by approximately $1400

Another significant element in determining the Companys pension expense is the discount rate for plan liabilities

To develop the discount rate assumption to be used the Company refers to the yield derived from matching
projected pension payments with maturities of portfolio of available non-callable bonds rated AA- or better The

Company determined this rate to be 6.13% for its U.S plans at December 31 2008 25 basis point change in the
discount rate would increase or decrease pension expense by approximately $2000

Pension expense relating to the Companys defined benefit plans was $4613 $6260 and $17926 in 20082007 and
2006 respectively The Company expects 2009 pension expense to increase by approximately $38500

The Company made voluntary contributions to its U.S defined benefit plans of $20000 $10000 and $17500 in

20082007 and 2006 respectively The Company expects to voluntarily contribute $30000 to its U.S plans in 2009
Based on current pension funding rules the Company does not anticipate that contributions to the plans would be

required in 2009

In the first quarter 2006 the Company modified its retirement benefit programs whereby employees of its largest
U.S company hired on or after January 2006 will be covered under newly enhanced 401k defined contribution

plan In the second quarter of 2006 current employees of the U.S company made an election to either remain in the

existing retirement programs or switch to new programs offering enhanced defined contribution benefits improved
vacation and reduced defined benefit

Inventories and Reserves

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market Fixed manufacturing overhead costs are allocated to inventory
based on normal production capacity and abnormal manufacturing costs are recognized as period costs For most
domestic inventories cost is determined principally by the last-in first-out LIFO method and for non-U.S inven
tories cost is determined by the first-in first-out FJFO method The valuation of LIFO inventories is made at the
end of each

year based on inventory levels and costs at that time The excess of current cost over LIFO cost
amounted to $90914 at December 31 2008 and $72088 at December 31 2007 The Company reviews the net
realizable value of inventory in detail on an on-going basis with consideration given to deterioration obsolescence
and other factors If actual market conditions differ from those projected by management and the Companys
estimates

prove to be inaccurate write-downs of inventory values and adjustments to cost of sales may be required

Historically the Companys reserves have approximated actual experience

Accounts Receivable and Allowances

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses from the failure of its customers to

make required payments for products delivered The Company estimates this allowance based on the age of the
related receivable knowledge of the financial condition of customers review of historical receivables and reserve
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trends and other pertinent
information If the financial condition of customers deteriorates or an unfavorable trend in

receivable collections is experienced in the future additional allowances may be required Historically the

Companys reserves have approximated
actual experience

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets the Company

periodically
evaluates whether current facts or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of its depreciable

long-lived assets to be held and used may not be recoverable If such circumstances are determined to exist an

estimate of undiscounted future cash flows produced by the long-lived asset or the appropriate grouping of assets is

compared to the carrying value to determine whether impairment exists If an asset is determined to be impaired

loss is recognized to the extent that carrying value exceeds fair value Fair value is measured based on quoted market

prices in active markets if available If quoted market prices are not available the estimate of fair value is based on

various valuation techniques including the discounted value of estimated future cash flows

Impairment of Goodwill and Intangibles

The Company performs an annual impairment test of goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets in the

fourth quarter using the same dates each year or more frequently if changes in circumstances or the occurrence of

events indicate potential impairment as required under SPAS 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets The fair

value of each indefinite-lived intangible asset is compared to its carrying value and an impairment charge is

recorded if the carrying value exceeds the fair value Goodwill is tested by comparing the fair value of each

reporting unit with its carrying value If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value the implied

value of goodwill is compared to its carrying value and impairment is recognized to the extent that the carrying

value exceeds the implied fair value

Fair values are determined using models developed by the Company which incorporate estimates of future cash

flows allocations of certain assets and cash flows among reporting units future growth rates established business

valuation multiples and management judgments regarding the applicable discount rates to value estimated cash

flows Changes in economic and operating conditions impacting these assumptions could result in asset impair

ments in future periods

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Companys primary financial market risks include fluctuations in currency exchange rates commodity prices

and interest rates The Company manages these risks by using derivative financial instruments in accordance with

established policies and procedures The Company does not enter into derivatives or other financial instruments for

trading or speculative purposes

Included below is sensitivity analysis based upon hypothetical 10% weakening or strengthening in the

U.S dollar compared to foreign currency exchange rates at December 31 2008 10% change in commodity prices

and 100 basis point increase in effective interest rates under the Companys current borrowing arrangements The

contractual derivative and borrowing arrangements in effect at December 31 2008 were compared to the

hypothetical foreign exchange commodity price or interest rates in the sensitivity analysis to determine the

effect on income before taxes interest expense or accumulated other comprehensive loss The analysis takes into

consideration any
offset that would result from changes in the value of the hedged asset or liability

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts principally to hedge the currency fluctuations in

transactions denominated in foreign currencies thereby limiting the Companys risk that would otherwise result

from changes in exchange rates At December 31 2008 the Company hedged third party and intercompany

purchases and sales At December 31 2008 the Company had foreign exchange contracts with notional value of

approximately $35807 At December 31 2008 hypothetical 10% weakening of the U.S dollar would not

materially affect the Companys financial statements
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At December 31 2008 the Company also had foreign exchange contracts with notional value of approximately

$65040 which hedged certain balance sheet exposures Any loss resulting from hypothetical 10% weakening of

the U.S dollar would be offset by the associated gain on the underlying balance sheet exposure and would not

materially affect the Companys financial statements

Commodity Price Risk

From time to time the Company uses various hedging arrangements to manage exposures to price risk from

commodity purchases These hedging arrangements have the effect of locking in for specified periods the prices the

Company will pay for the volume to which the hedge relates hypothetical 10% adverse change in commodity
prices on the Companys open commodity futures at December 31 2008 would not materially affect the Companys
financial statements

Interest Rate Risk

At December 31 2008 the Company had various floating interest rate swaps used to convert its outstanding
$110000 fixed-rate long-term borrowings into short-term variable interest rates An increase in interest

expense
resulting from hypothetical increase of 100 basis points in the December 31 2008 floating rate would not

materially affect the Companys financial statements See discussion in Item Debt

The fair value of the Companys cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities at December 31 2008
approximated carrying value due to their short-term duration These financial instruments are also subject to

concentrations of credit risk The Company has minimized this risk by entering into investments with number of

major banks and financial institutions and investing in high-quality instruments The Company does not expect any
counterparties to fail to meet their obligations

ITEM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The response to this item is submitted in separate section of this report following the signature page

ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer the Company conducted an evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures as such term is

defined in Rule 3a- 15e of the Exchange Act Based on this evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of

the period covered by this annual report

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Companys management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 3a- 151 Under the supervision and with

the participation of the Companys management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
the Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31 2008 based on the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on the Companys evaluation under

such framework management concluded that the Companys internal control over financial reporting was effective

as of December 31 2008
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The effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 has been

audited by Ernst Young LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report which is

included herein

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in the Companys internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the

fourth quarter of 2008 that materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Companys internal

control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company will file its 2009 proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Exchange Act prior to

April 30 2009

Except for the information set forth below concerning our Executive Officers the information required by this item

is incorporated by reference from the 2009 proxy statement

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Name Position

John Stropki Jr 58 Chairman of the Board since October 13 2004 Director since 1998

Chief Executive Officer and President since June 2004 Chief Operating

Officer from May 2003 to June 2004 Executive Vice President from 1995

to June 2004 and President North America from 1996 to 2003

Vincent Petrella 48 Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since October

2005 Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer from February

2004 to October 2005 and Vice President Corporate Controller from 2001 to

2003

Frederick Stueber 55 Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary since 1996

George Blankenship 46 Senior Vice President Global Engineering since October 2005

Vice President Global Engineering from May 2005 to October 2005

Senior Vice President President Lincoln Cleveland of The Lincoln Electric

Company since January 2008 Senior Vice President U.S Operations of The

Lincoln Electric Company since October 2005 Vice President Cleveland

Operations of The Lincoln Electric Company from June 2005 to October

2005 and Vice President Engineering and Quality Assurance of The Lincoln

Electric Company from 2000 to June 2005

Gretchen Farrell 46 Vice President Human Resources since May 2005 Vice President Human

Resources of The Lincoln Electric Company since March 2003 and Director

Compensation and Benefits of The Lincoln Electric Company from 1997 to

2003

Thomas Flohn 48 Vice President President Lincoln Asia Pacific since January 2005 and

Vice President of Sales and Marketing Lincoln Electric Asia Pacific from May

1999 to December 31 2004

David LeBlanc 44 Vice President President Lincoln Electric Europe and Russia since September

2005 and Vice President President Lincoln Electric Latin America from

January 2002 to August 31 2005
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The Company has been advised that there is no arrangement or understanding among any one of the officers listed

and
any other persons pursuant to which he was elected as an officer The executive officers serve at the pleasure of

the Board of Directors

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2009 proxy statement

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Except for the information set forth below regarding our equity plans the information required by this item is

incorporated by reference from the 2009 proxy statement

Number of Securities

Remaining Available for

Weighted Future Issuance Under Equity
Number of Securities Average Compensation

to be Issued Exercise Price of Plans Excluding

Upon Exercise of Outstanding Securities Reflected

Outstanding Options Options in Column
Plan Category

Equity compensation plans

Approved by security holders 1716017 $43.55 3631865

Not approved by security

holders

Total 1716017 $43.55 3631865

For further information on the Companys equity compensation plans see Note Significant Accounting

Policies and Note Stock Plans to the Companys consolidated financial statements included in Item

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2009 proxy statement

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the 2009 proxy statement

PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements of the Company are included in separate section of this

report following the signature page and certifications

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Consolidated Balance Sheets December 31 2008 and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Income Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Financial Statement Schedules

The following consolidated financial statement schedule of the Company is included in separate section of

this report following the signature page

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the Securities and

Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have

been omitted

Exhibits

Exhibit No Description

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc filed as Annex to Form S-4 of

Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc Registration No 333-50435 filed on April 17 1998 and

incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

3.2 Amended and Restated Code of Regulations of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc filed as Exhibit 3.2 to

Form 10-Q of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the three months ended June 30 2008 SEC File No

0-0 1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.1 Credit Agreement dated December 17 2004 among Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc The

Lincoln Electric Company Lincoln Electric International Holding Company Harris Calorific

Inc Lincoln Global Inc the financial institutions listed in Annex thereof and KeyBank

National Association as Letter of Credit Issuer and Administrative Agent filed as Exhibit 10.1

to Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc filed on December 22 2004 SEC File No 0-1402 and

incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.2 Note Purchase Agreement dated March 12 2002 between Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc and The

Lincoln Electric Company and the Purchasers listed in Schedule thereof filed as Exhibit 10q to

Form 10-Q of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the three months ended March 31 2002 SEC File

No 0- 1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.3 Amended and Restated Note Purchase and Private Shelf Agreement between Lincoln Electric

Holdings Inc The Lincoln Electric Company and The Prudential Insurance Company of America

dated as of April 30 2002 filed as Exhibit 10v to Form 10-Q of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for

the three months ended June 30 2002 SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and

made part hereof

10.4 Amendment No ito the Amended and Restated Note Purchase and Private Shelf Agreement dated as

of December 14 2006 filed as Exhibit 10d to Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the

year ended December 31 2006 SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made

part hereof

10.5 1998 Stock Plan Amended Restated and Renamed as of May 2003 filed as Appendix to the

Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc proxy statement dated March 31 2003 SEC File No 0-1402 and

incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.6 Amendment No ito the 1998 Stock Plan Amended Restated and Renamed Effective May 2003

dated October 20 2006 filed as Exhibit 10.6 to Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the

year ended December 31 2007 SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made

part hereof

10.7 1988 Incentive Equity Plan filed as Exhibit 28 to the Form S-8 Registration Statement of The

Lincoln Electric Company SEC File No 33-25209 and incorporated herein by reference and made

part hereof as adopted and amended by Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc pursuant to an Instrument of

Adoption and Amendment dated December 29 1998 filed as Exhibit 10d to Form 10-K of Lincoln

Electric Holdings Inc for the year ended December 31 1998 SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated

herein by reference and made part hereof
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Exhibit No Description

10.8 Amendment No to the 1988 Incentive Equity Plan dated October 20 2006 filed as Exhibit 10.8 to

Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the year ended December 31 2007 SEC File

No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.9 Form of Indemnification Agreement filed as Exhibit to The Lincoln Electric Company 1987

proxy statement SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.10 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Amended and Restated as of December31 2008 filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc filed on January 2009 and incorporated

herein by reference and made part hereof

10.11 Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives Amended and Restated as of January 2004 filed as

Exhibit 10h to Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the year ended December 31 2003
SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.12 Amendment No ito the Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives Amended and Restated as of

January 2004 filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc on February

2005 SEC File No 0- 1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.13 Instrument of Termination of the Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives filed as Exhibit 10.2 to

Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc filed on January 2006 SEC File No 0-1402 and

incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.14 Deferred Compensation Plan for Certain Retention Agreements and Other Contractual

Arrangements Amended and Restated as of January 2004 filed as Exhibit 10i to

Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the year ended December 31 2003 SEC File

No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.15 Non-Employee Directors Deferred Compensation Plan Amended and Restated as of December 31

2008 filed as Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc filed on January 2009
SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.16 Description of Management Incentive Plan filed as Exhibit 10e to Form 10-K of The Lincoln

Electric Company for the
year

ended December 31 1995 SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated

herein by reference and made part hereof

10.17 Description of Long-Term Performance Plan filed as Exhibit 10f to Form 10-K of The Lincoln

Electric Company for the year ended December 31 1997 SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated

herein by reference and made part hereof

10.18 Summary of Employment Agreements filed as Exhibit 101 to Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric

Holdings Inc for the year ended December 31 2003 SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein

by reference and made part hereof

10.19 Form of Severance Agreement as entered into by the Company and the following executive officers

Messrs Stropki and Stueber filed as Exhibit 10 to Form 10-Q of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for

the nine months ended December 31 1998 SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by

reference and made part hereof

10.20 Form of Amendment No to Severance Agreement as entered into by the Company and the

following executive officers Messrs Stropki and Stueber filed as Exhibit 10o to Form 10-K of

Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the year ended December 31 1999 SEC File No 0- 1402 and

incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.21 Form of Amendment No to Severance Agreement as entered into by the Company and the

following executive officers Messrs Stropki and Stueber filed as Exhibit 10.6 to Form 8-K of

Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc filed on January 2009 SEC File No 0-0402 and incorporated

herein by reference and made part hereof

10.22 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors filed as Exhibit 10p to Form 10-Q of Lincoln

Electric Holdings Inc for the three months ended March 31 2000 SEC File No 0-1402 and

incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof
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Exhibit No Description

10.23 Amendment No to the Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors dated October 20 2006

filed as Exhibit 10.26 to Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the year ended December

31 2007 SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.24 Summary of Cash Long-Term Incentive Plan as amended filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K of

Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc filed on April 2005 SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein

by reference and made part hereof

10.25 Letter Agreement between John Stropki Jr and Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc dated October 12

2004 filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc filed on October 18 2004

SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.26 2005 Deferred Compensation Plan for Executives Amended and Restated as of December 31 2008

filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc filed on January 2009 SEC

File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.27 2006 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan filed as Appendix to the Lincoln Electric Holdings

Inc proxy statement dated March 28 2006 SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by

reference and made part hereof

10.28 Amendment No to the 2006 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan dated October 20 2006 filed

as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the three months ended March 31

2007 SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.29 Amendment No to the 2006 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan filed as Exhibit 10.5 to

Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc filed on January 2009 SEC File No 0-1402 and

incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.30 2006 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors filed as Appendix to the Lincoln Electric Holdings

Inc proxy statement dated March 28 2006 SEC File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by

reference and made part hereof

10.31 Amendment No ito the 2006 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors dated October 20 2006 filed

as Exhibit 10.2 to Form 10-Q of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the three months ended March 31

2007 SEC file No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

10.32 Amendment No to the 2006 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors dated July 26 2007 filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the three months ended

September 30 2007 SEC file No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part

hereof

10.33 2007 Management Incentive Compensation Plan Amended and Restated as of December 31 2008

filed as Exhibit 10.4 to Form 8-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc filed on January 2009 SEC

File No 0-1402 and incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

24 Powers of Attorney

31.1 Certification by the President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule i3a-l4a of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934

31.2 Certification by the Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer pursuant to

Rule 13a-14a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

32.1 Certifications pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Reflects management contract or other compensatory arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to

Item 15b of this report
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC

By Is/ VINCENT PETRELLA

Vincent Petrella Senior Vice President

Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

principal financial and accounting officer

February 23 2009
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Is JOHN STROPKI JR

John Stropki Jr Chairman of the

Board President and Chief Executive

Officer principal executive officer

February 23 2009

Is VINCENT PETRELLA

Vincent Petrella as

Attorney-in-Fact for

Harold Adams Director

February 23 2009

Is VINCENT PETRELLA

Vincent Petrella as

Attorney-in-Fact for

Stephen Hanks Director

February 23 2009

Is VINCENT PETRELLA

Vincent Petrella as

Attorney-in-Fact for

Robert Knoll Director

February 23 2009

Is VINCENT PETRELLA

Vincent Petrella as

Attorney-in-Fact for

Russell Lincoln Director

February 23 2009

Is VINCENT PETRELLA

Vincent Petrella as

Attorney-in-Fact for

George Walls Jr Director

February 23 2009

Is VINCENT PETRELLA

Vincent Petrella

Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer and

Treasurer principal financial and accounting officer

February 23 2009

/s VINCENT PETRELLA

Vincent Petrella as

Attorney-in-Fact for

David Gunning Director

February 23 2009

Is VINCENT PETRELLA

Vincent Petrella as

Attorney-in-Fact for

Kathryn Lincoln Director

February 23 2009

/s VINCENT PETRELLA

Vincent Petrella as

Attorney-in-Fact for

Hellene Runtagh Director

February 23 2009

Is VINCENT PETRELLA

Vincent Petrella as

Attorney-in-Fact for

William MacDonald III Director

February 23 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc and subsidiaries

as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of income shareholders equity and

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 Our audits also included the financial

statement schedule listed in the Index as Item 15 These financial statements and schedule are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements and schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated

financial position of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc and subsidiaries at December 31 2008 and 2007 and the

consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2008 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the

related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole

presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

As discussed in Note Ito the financial statements effective December 31 2006 the Company adopted Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensions and Other

Post retirement Plans As discussed in Note to the financial statements effective January 2007 the Company
adopted FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an interpretation of FASB
Statement No 109

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc and subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 23 2009

expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is/ ERNST YOUNG LLP

Cleveland Ohio

February 23 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc

We have audited Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc and subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria Lincoln Electric

Holdings Inc and subsidiaries management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial

reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the

accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting in Item 9A Our responsibility is

to express an opinion on the companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances We believe

that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is
process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstate

ments Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc and subsidiaries maintained in all material respects effective

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated balance sheets of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc and subsidiaries as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of income shareholders equity and cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 and our report dated February 23 2009

expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

1st ERNST YOUNG LLP

Cleveland Ohio

February 23 2009
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

In thousands

December 31

2008 2007

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 284332 217382

Accounts receivable less allowance for doubtful accounts of $7673 in 2008

$7424 in 2007 299171 344058

Inventories

Raw materials 94112 92557

Work-in-process 49692 48444

Finished goods 203128 202848

Total inventory 346932 343849

Deferred income taxes 16725 10286

Other current assets 77566 54073

Total Current Assets 1024726 969648

Property Plant and Equipment

Land 38745 41415

Buildings 258736 255318

Machinery and equipment 643056 629780

940537 926513

Less accumulated depreciation 512635 496569

Property Plant and Equipment Net 427902 429944

Other Assets

Prepaid pensions 2716 48897

Equity investments in affiliates 62358 59723

Intangibles net 65262 51194

Goodwill 36187 42727

Long-term investments 29843 30170

Deferred income taxes 47397

Other non-current assets 22414 12993

Total Other Assets 266177 245704

TOTAL ASSETS $1718805 $1645296

See notes to these consolidated financial statements
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

In thousands except share data

December 31

2008 2007

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities

Amounts due banks
19436 11581

Trade accounts payable
124388 152301

Accrued employee compensation and benefits
47405 48486

Accrued expenses
25173 25407

Accrued taxes including income taxes
13305 13130

Accrued pensions
3248 3790

Dividends payable
11444 10720

Other current liabilities
80986 45601

Current portion of long-term debt
31257 905

Total current liabilities
356642 311921

Long-term liabilities

Long-term debt less current portion
91537 117329

Accrued pensions
188160 29164

Deferred income taxes
8553 36874

Accrued taxes
40323 34132

Other long-term liabilities
38278 28656

Total long-term liabilities
366851 246155

Shareholders equity

Preferred shares without par value at stated capital amount authorized

5000000 shares issued and outstanding none

Common shares without par value at stated capital amount authorized

120000000 shares issued 49290717 shares in 2008 and 2007

outstanding 42521628 shares in 2008 and 42961679 shares in 2007 4929 4929

Additional paid-in capital
155538 145825

Retained earnings
1236810 1068100

Accumulated other comprehensive loss income 218158 15841

Treasury shares at cost 6769089 shares in 2008 and 6329038 shares in

2007
183807 147475

Total shareholders equity
995312 1087220

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY $1718805 $1645296

See notes to these consolidated financial statements
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
In thousands except per share data

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Net sales $2479131 $2280784 $1971915
Cost of goods sold 1758980 1633218 1419638

Gross profit 720151 647566 552277
Selling general administrative

expenses 405376 370122 315829
Rationalization and asset impairment charges gain 19371 188 3478

Operating income 295404 277632 232970
Other income expense

Interest income
8845 8294 5876

Equity earnings in affiliates 6034 9838 7640
Other income

1681 2823 1839

Interest expense 12155 11430 10153
Total other income 4405 9525 5202

Income before income taxes 299809 287157 238172
Income taxes

87523 84421 63164

Net income 212286 202736 175008

Per share amounts

Basic earnings per share
4.98 4.73 4.11

Diluted earnings per share
4.93 4.67 4.07

Cash dividends declared per share
1.02 0.91 0.79

See notes to these consolidated financial statements
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

In thousands except per share data

Balance January 2006

Comprehensive income

Net income

Minimum pension liability adjustment

net of tax of $45093

Unrealized gain on derivatives

designated and qualifying as cash

flow hedges net of tax of $637

Currency translation adjustment

Total comprehensive income

Cash dividends declared $0.79 per share

Issuance of shares under benefit plans

Purchase of shares for treasury

Adjustment to initially adopt SFASI58

net of tax of $39380

Balance December 31 2006

Comprehensive income

Net income

Unrecognized amounts from defined

benefit pension plans net of tax

of $10371

Unrealized loss on derivatives

designated and qualifying as cash

flow hedges net of tax of $1772

Currency translation adjustment

Total comprehensive income

Cash dividends declared $0.91 per share

Issuance of shares under benefit plans

Purchase of shares for treasury

Adjustment to initially adopt FIN 48

Balance December 31 2007

Comprehensive income

Net income

Unrecognized amounts from defined

benefit pension plans net of tax

of $84685

Unrealized gain on derivatives

designated and qualifying as cash

flow hedges net of tax of $137

Currency translation adjustment

Total comprehensive loss

Cash dividends declared $1.02 per share

Issuance of shares under benefit plans

Purchase of shares for treasury

Balance December 31 2008

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Income Loss

91276

175008

71920 71920

902

27323

275153

33682

11468 22859

126 126

63522

140689 852976

202736

17704 17704

2989 2989

55779 55779

273230

39120

8673 17612

15459 15459

2019

15841 147475 1087220

212286

142422 142422

842

92419

6005

42337

$218158 $183807

See notes to these consolidated financial statements

Treasury

Shares Total

$15203l 652294

Common Additional

Shares Common Paid-In

Outstanding Stock Capital

42181 $4928 $125925

627 11390

Retained

Earnings

764748

175008

33682

902

27323

63522

42806 4929 137315 906074 54653

202736

39120

1590

1068100

212286

43576

378 8939

222

429

42962 4929 145825

301 9713

741

42522 $4929 $155538 $1236810

842

92419

21713

43576

15718

42337

995312
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
In thousands

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income 212286 $202736 $175008

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities

Rationalization and asset impairment charges gain 19371 188 3478

Depreciation and amortization 56925 52610 47825

Equity earnings of affiliates net 3235 7208 5728
Deferred income taxes 7367 3711 4349

Stock-based compensation 4738 4679 4217
Amortization of terminated interest rate swaps 958 1121 2117
Gain loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 180 627 8738
Other non-cash items net 6644 1083 1332

Changes in operating assets and liabilities net of effects from

acquisitions

Decrease increase in accounts receivable 30130 20723 39719
Increase decrease in inventories 27845 36011 57299
Increase decrease in other current assets 27450 2354 10656
Decrease increase in accounts payable 26768 3333 12914

Increase decrease in other current liabilities 37040 1798 937
Contributions to pension plans 23810 13031 20503

Decrease increase in accrued pensions 2165 3237 16248

Net change in other long-term assets and liabilities 4641 226 994
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 257449 249832 118680

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditures 72426 61633 76002

Acquisition of businesses net of cash acquired 44036 18773 25504
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 662 701 11791

NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 115800 79705 89715

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from short-term borrowings 19504 6550 2035

Payments on short-term borrowings 7849 1004 3192
Amounts due banks net 5551 2720 115

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1352

Payments on long-term borrowings 1033 40142 3147
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 7201 8644 13618

Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 3728 4289 5243
Purchase of shares for treasury 42337 15459 126
Cash dividends paid to shareholders 42756 37744 32275

NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 67741 77586 17729
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 6958 4629 969

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 66950 97170 12205

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 217382 120212 108007

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 284332 $217382 $120212

See notes to these consolidated financial statements
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In thousands of dollars except share and per share data

December 31 2008

NOTE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc its wholly-owned and

majority-owned subsidiaries for which it has controlling interest the Company after elimination of all

intercompany accounts transactions and profits Minority ownership interest in consolidated subsidiaries which is

not material is recorded in Other long-term liabilities

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less when purchased to be

cash equivalents

Accounts Receivable

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses from the failure of its customers to

make required payments for products delivered The Company estimates this allowance based on the age of the

related receivable knowledge of the financial condition of customers review of historical receivables and reserve

trends and other pertinent information If the financial condition of customers deteriorates or an unfavorable trend in

receivable collections is experienced in the future additional allowances may be required Historically the

Companys reserves have approximated actual experience

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market Fixed manufacturing overhead costs are allocated to inventory

based on normal production capacity and abnormal manufacturing costs are recognized as period costs For

domestic inventories cost is determined principally by the last-in first-out LIFO method and for non-U.S inven

tories cost is determined by the first-in first-out FIFO method At December 31 2008 and 2007 approximately

35% and 36% respectively of total inventories were valued using the LIFO method The excess of current cost over

LIFO cost amounted to $90914 at December 31 2008 and $72088 at December 31 2007

Reserves are maintained for estimated obsolescence or excess inventory equal to the difference between the cost of

inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions

Historically the Companys reserves have approximated actual experience

Equity Investments

Investments in businesses in which the Company does not have controlling interest and holds between 20% and

50% ownership interest are accounted for using the equity method of accounting on one month-lag basis The

Companys 50% ownership interest in equity investments includes investments in Turkey and Chile In addition the

Company holds 35% interest in Taiwanese joint venture and 21% interest in an investment in the Peoples

Republic of China The amount of retained earnings that represents undistributed earnings of 50% or less owned

equity investments was $26875 at December 31 2008 and $23674 at December 31 2007

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost and include improvements which significantly increase capacities

or extend the useful lives of existing plant and equipment Depreciation and amortization are computed using

straight-line method over useful lives ranging from three to 20 years for machinery tools and equipment and up to

50 years for buildings Net gains or losses related to asset dispositions are recognized in earnings in the period in
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

which dispositions occur The following table summarizes assets held under capital leases and included in property

plant and equipment

2008 2007

Buildings 6421 6323

Machinery and equipment 1561 390

Less Accumulated depreciation 2257 1701

Net capital leases 5725 5012

Routine maintenance repairs and replacements are expensed as incurred The Company capitalizes interest cost

associated with construction in progress

Goodwill and Intangibles

The Company performs an annual impairment test of goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets in the

fourth quarter using the same dates each year or more frequently if changes in circumstances or the occurrence of

events indicate potential impairment as required under SFAS 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets The fair

value of each indefinite-lived intangible asset is compared to its carrying value and an impairment charge is

recorded if the carrying value exceeds the fair value Goodwill is tested by comparing the fair value of each

reporting unit with its carrying value If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value the implied

value of goodwill is compared to its carrying value and impairment is recognized to the extent that the carrying

value exceeds the implied fair value

Fair values are determined using models developed by the Company which incorporate estimates of future cash

flows allocations of certain assets and cash flows among reporting units future growth rates established business

valuation multiples and management judgments regarding the applicable discount rates to value estimated cash

flows Changes in economic and operating conditions impacting these assumptions could result in asset impair

ments in future periods

The Companys annual impairment testing indicated that the carrying value of goodwill at two businesses in China

exceeded the implied value of goodwill and the Company recorded charge of $13194 See Note for further

discussion

In addition the Company determined that two indefinite-lived intangible assets were impaired The Company
recorded an impairment charge of $1342 to reduce the carrying value of these intangible assets to fair value and

assigned definite life to the remaining balances on prospective basis See Note for further discussion

The Company performed its annual impairment tests in the fourth quarters of 2007 and 2006 and determined that no

impairment of goodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets existed at that time
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment for the years ended December 31 2008 and

2007 were as follows

North Other

America Europe Countries Consolidated

Balance as of January 2007 $13334 9421 $12453 $35208

Additions and adjustments 4248 1431 379 5300

Foreign exchange effect 249 1119 851 2219

Balance as of January 12008 17831 11971 12925 42727

Additions and adjustments 1419 21 11603 10205

Impairment charges 13194 13194

Foreign exchange effect 327 2177 1047 3551

Balance as of December 31 2008 $16085 9815 $10287 $36187

Additions to goodwill for 2008 and 2007 primarily reflect goodwill recorded in the acquisitions of Harris Soldas

Especiais S.A and Vernon Tool Company Ltd See Note

Gross intangible assets other than goodwill by asset class as of December 31 2008 and 2007 were as follows

2008 2007

Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Trademarks and trade names $26973 $6342 $22975 $6322

Customer relationships 23900 2331 19512 1424

Patents 13095 2192 11176 1713

Other 23289 11130 17059 10069

Total $87257 $21995 $70722 $19528

Intangible assets other than goodwill are recorded at fair value at the time acquired or at cost if applicable

Intangible assets that do not have indefinite lives are amortized on straight-line method over the shorter of the legal

or estimated life Included in the above table are intangible assets with indefinite lives totaling $16960 and $14436

at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

The weighted average amortization period for trademarks and trade names customer relationships patents and

other intangibles is 16 20 19 and 17 years respectively Aggregate amortization expense was $3432 $2349 and

$2102 for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Estimated annual amortization expense for intangible assets for each

of the next five years is $5544 in 2009 $5297 in 2010 $4257 in 2011 $3974 in 2012 and $3781 in 2013

Long-lived Assets

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No SFAS 144 Accounting for the Impairment

or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets the Company periodically evaluates whether current facts or circumstances

indicate that the carrying value of its depreciable long-lived assets to be held and used may not be recoverable If

such circumstances are determined to exist an estimate of undiscounted future cash flows produced by the long-

lived asset or the appropriate grouping of assets is compared to the carrying value to determine whether

impairment exists If an asset is determined to be impaired loss is recognized to the extent that carrying value

exceeds fair value Fair value is measured based on quoted market prices in active markets if available If quoted

market prices are not available the estimate of fair value is based on various valuation techniques including the

discounted value of estimated future cash flows
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Product Warranties

The Company accrues for product warranty claims based on historical experience and the expected material and

labor costs to provide warranty service Warranty services are provided for periods up to three years from the date of

sale The accrual for product warranty claims is included in Accrued expenses Warranty accruals have increased

as result of the effect of higher sales levels The changes in the carrying amount of product warranty accruals for

2008 2007 and 2006 were as follows

December 31

2008 2007 2006

Balance at beginning of year 12308 9373 7728
Charged to costs and expenses 14022 12460 9744
Deductions 11974 9988 8335
Foreign currency translation 620 463 236

Balance at end of year 13736 $12308 9373

Warranty expense was 0.6% of sales for 2008 and 0.5% of sales for 2007 and 2006

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when the risks and rewards of ownership and title to the product have transferred

to the customer Revenue recognition generally occurs at the point of shipment however in certain instances as

shipping terms dictate revenue is recognized when the product reaches the point of destination

Distribution Costs

Distribution costs including warehousing and freight related to product shipments are included in Cost of goods

sold

Stock-Based Compensation

SFAS 123R Share-Based Payment requires all share-based payments to employees including grants of

employee stock options to be recognized in the income statement based on their fair values The Company adopted

SFAS 123R on January 12006 using the modified-prospective method The adoption of this standard did not have

material impact on the Companys financial statements as the Company adopted fair value accounting under

SFAS 123 on January 2003

Expense is recognized for all awards of stock-based compensation by allocating the aggregate grant date fair value

over the vesting period No expense is recognized for any stock options restricted or deferred shares ultimately

forfeited because the recipients fail to meet vesting requirements Total stock-based compensation expense

recognized in the consolidated statement of income for 2008 2007 and 2006 was $4738 $4679 and $4217

respectively The related tax benefit for 2008 2007 and 2006 was $1793 $1789 and $1612 respectively

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Asset and liability accounts are translated into U.S dollars using exchange rates in effect at the date of the

consolidated balance sheet revenue and
expense accounts are translated at monthly exchange rates Translation

adjustments are reflected as component of Shareholders equity For subsidiaries operating in highly inflationary

economies both historical and current exchange rates are used in translating balance sheet accounts and translation

adjustments are included in net income
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Foreign currency transaction losses are included in Selling general administrative expenses and were $10409

$6102 and $1696 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Financial Instruments

The Company uses forward contracts to hedge exposures to commodity prices and exchange rate fluctuations on

certain purchase and sales transactions and balance sheet exposures Contracts are generally written on short-term

basis but may cover exposures for up to two years and are not held for trading or speculative purposes The

Company uses interest rate swaps to hedge changes in the fair value of debt The Company recognizes derivative

instruments as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheets at fair value The accounting for changes in the fair

value of derivative instruments depends on whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of hedging

relationship and further on the type of hedging relationship

For derivative instruments that qualify as fair value hedge i.e hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of

an asset or liability the gain or loss on the derivative instrument as well as the offsetting loss or gain on the

hedged item are recognized in earnings For derivative instruments that qualify as cash flow hedge i.e hedging

the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows the effective portion of the unrealized gain or loss on the

derivative instrument is reported as component of Accumulated other comprehensive loss with offsetting

amounts recorded as Other current assets Other non-current assets Other current liabilities or Other long-

term liabilities depending on the position and the duration of the contract At settlement the realized gain or loss is

reflected in earnings in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings Any

remaining gain or loss on the derivative instrument is recognized in earnings The Company does not hedge its net

investments in foreign subsidiaries For derivative instruments not designated as hedges the gain or loss from

changes in their fair values is recognized in earnings

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are charged to Selling general administrative expenses when incurred and totaled $10337

$10245 and $8887 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred and totaled $26736 $25794 and $24055 in 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively

Bonus

Included in Selling general administrative expenses are the costs related to the Companys discretionary

employee bonus net of hospitalization costs of $100706 in 2008 $93958 in 2007 and $81498 in 2006

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions in certain circumstances that affect the amounts reported

in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes Actual results could differ from these estimates

Reclassification

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year financial statements to conform to current year

classifications
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2008 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Staff Position 132R-i FSP

FAS 132R-i Employers Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets an amendment of

SFAS 132R This standard requires disclosure about an entitys investment policies and strategies the categories

of plan assets concentrations of credit risk and fair value measurements of plan assets The standard is effective for

fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 The Company does not expect the adoption of FSP FAS 132R-ito

have significant impact on its financial statements

In November 2008 the Emerging Issues Task Force issued Issue 08-6 EITF 08-06 Equity Method Investment

Accounting Considerations This Issue addresses the impact that SFAS 141R and SFAS 160 might have on the

accounting for equity method investments including how the initial carrying value of an equity method investment

should be determined how it should be tested for impairment and how changes in classification from equity

method to cost method should be treated The Issue is to be implemented prospectively and is effective for fiscal

years beginning after December 15 2008 The Company does not expect the adoption of EITF 08-06 to have

significant impact on its financial statements

In May2008 the FASB issued SFAS 162 The Hierarchy of GenerallyAcceptedAccounting Principles.SFAS 162

identifies the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles to be used in the

preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with generally

accepted accounting principles GAAP SFAS 162 directs the GAAP hierarchy to the entity not the independent

auditors as the entity is responsible for selecting accounting principles for financial statements that are presented in

conformity with GAAP SFAS 162 is effective 60 days following the SECs approval of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board amendments to remove the GAAP hierarchy from the auditing standards The

Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 162 to have significant impact on its financial statements

In April2008 FASB Staff Position 142-3 Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets FSP 142-3 was

issued This standard amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions

used to determine the useful life of recognized intangible asset under SFAS 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible

Assets FSP 142-3 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008

and interim periods within those fiscal years Early adoption is prohibited FSP 142-3 applies prospectively to

intangible assets acquired after adoption The Company does not expect the adoption of FSP 142-3 to have

significant impact on its financial statements

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities an

amendment of SFAS 133 SFAS 161 requires disclosures of how and why an entity uses derivative instruments how

derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for and how derivative instruments and related

hedged items affect an entitys financial position financial performance and cash flows SFAS 161 is effective for

fiscal years beginning after November 15 2008 with early adoption permitted The Company does not expect the

adoption of SFAS 161 to have significant impact on its financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements

which is an amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No ARB 51 SFAS 160 clarifies that noncontrolling

interest in subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in the

consolidated financial statements SFAS 160 changes the way the consolidated income statement is presented thus

requiring consolidated net income to be reported at amounts that include the amounts attributable to both parent and

the noncontrolling interest SFAS 160 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years

beginning on or after December 15 2008 The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 160 to have

significant impact on its financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS 141 revised 2007 Business Combinations SFAS 141R replaces

SFAS 141 Business Combinations SFAS 141R retains the fundamental requirements in SFAS 141 that the
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

acquisition method of accounting which SFAS 141 called the purchase method be used for all business

combinations and for an acquirer to be identified for each business combination SFAS 141R defines the acquirer

as the entity that obtains control of one or more businesses in the business combination and establishes the

acquisition date as the date that the acquirer achieves control SFAS 14 1R requires an acquirer to recognize the

assets acquired the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at the acquisition date

measured at their fair values as of that date with limited exceptions specified in the statement SFAS 141R applies

prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual

reporting period beginning on or after December 15 2008

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities Including an Amendment of SFAS 115 which permits entities to choose to measure many financial

instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value

Unrealized gains and losses arising subsequent to adoption are reported in earnings SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal

years beginning after November 15 2007 The Company adopted this statement as of January 2008 and elected

not to apply the fair value option to any of its financial instruments

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS 157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS 157 defines fair value

establishes framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements

SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements rather it applies under existing accounting

pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning

after November 15 2007 The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 157 related to financial assets and

liabilities on January 2008 See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion

In July 2006 the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No FIN 48 Accounting for Uncertainly in Income

Taxes an interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after

December 15 2006 The Company adopted FIN 48 as of January 2007 See Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for further discussion

NOTE EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share in thousands except per

share amounts

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Numerator

Net income $212286 $202736 $175008

Denominator

Basic weighted average shares outstanding 42648 42899 42532

Effect of dilutive securities Stock options and awards 406 493 500

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 43054 43392 43032

Basic earnings per share 4.98 4.73 4.11

Diluted earnings per share 4.93 4.67 4.07

Common stock issuable upon the exercise of employee stock options is excluded from the calculation of diluted

earnings per share when the calculation of option equivalent shares is anti-dilutive The calculation of diluted

earnings per share for 2008 2007 and 2006 excludes 232044 29495 and 27465 shares respectively that were

anti-dilutive
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

The Companys Board of Directors has authorized share repurchase programs for up to 15 million shares of the

Companys common stock During 2008 the Company purchased 740569 shares of its common stock on the open

market at an average cost of $57.17 per share Through December 31 2008 11206983 shares have been purchased

under the share repurchase program at an average cost of $24.47 per share

NOTE ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS INCOME

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss income are as follows

Unrealized

Gain

Loss on

Derivatives

Designated and Total

Qualifying as Accumulated

Currency Cash Other

Defined Translation Flow Hedges Comprehensive

Benefit Plans Adjustment net of tax Loss Income

Balance January 2006 78376 $12057 843 91276
Other comprehensive income 71920 27323 902 100145

Adjustment to initially adopt

SFAS 158 63522 63522

Balance December 31 2006 69978 15266 59 54653
Other comprehensive income

loss 17704 55779 2989 70494

Balance December 31 2007 52274 71045 2930 15841

Other comprehensive loss
income 142422 92419 842 233999

Balance December 31 2008 $194696 $21374 $2088 218158

As of December 31 2006 the Company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS 158 As result

of adopting SFAS 158 the Company recorded liabilities equal to the underfunded status of defined benefit plans

and assets equal to the overfunded status of certain defined benefit plans measured as the difference between the fair

value of plan assets and the projected benefit obligation The Company recognized liabilities of $34900 and

prepaids of $16773 for its defined benefit pension plans and also recognized in Accumulated other comprehensive

loss actuarial losses and prior service credits of $69978 after-tax

NOTE STOCK PLANS

On April 28 2006 the shareholders of the Company approved the 2006 Equity and Performance Incentive Plan as

amended EPI Plan which replaces the 1998 Stock Plan as amended and restated in May 2003 The EPI Plan

provides for the granting of options appreciation rights restricted shares restricted stock units and performance-

based awards up to an additional 3000000 of the Companys common shares In addition on April 28 2006 the

shareholders of the Company approved the 2006 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors as amended Director

Plan which replaces the Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors adopted in 2000 The Director Plan

provides for the granting of options restricted shares and restricted stock units up to an additional 300000 of the

Companys common shares At December 31 2008 there were 3631865 common shares available for future grant

under all plans
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE STOCK PLANS continued

The following table summarizes the activity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2006 to

December 31 2008 under all Plans

2008 2007 2006

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Balance at beginning

of year 1663704 $41.63 1747050 $34.28 2071325 $28.54

Shares granted 316264 $44.11 268854 $68.48 241818 $60.42

Shares exercised 235650 $30.56 348450 $25.30 561218 $24.34

Shares canceled 28301 $45.23 3750 $60.72 4875 $39.48

Balance at end of year 1716017 $43.55 1663704 $41.63 1747050 $34.28

Exercisable at end of

year 1144784 $39.14 1152545 $33.45 1161034 $27.71

Options granted under both the EPI Plan and its predecessor pians are outstanding for term of ten years
from the

date of grant The majority of options granted vest ratably over period of three years
from the grant date The

exercise prices of all options were equal to the fair market value of the Companys common shares at the date of

grant There were no options granted under the Director Plan in 2008 Options granted under the Director Plan and

its predecessor plans were 6000 in 2006 The Company issued shares of common stock from treasury upon all

exercises of stock options in 2008 2007 and 2006

Restricted shares are valued at the quoted market price on the grant date and vest over period of three to five years

Under the EPI Plan the Company issued 56205 restricted shares at weighted average market price of $44.03 per

share in 2008 25690 restricted shares at market price of $68.51 per share in 2007 and 27000 resthcted shares at

market price of $60.51 per share in 2006 The Company issued 10233 restricted shares at market price of $43.97

per share 7102 restricted shares at market price of $68.21 per share and 6568 restricted shares at market price

of $60.85 under the Director Plan in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The Company issued 8411 shares of

common stock from authorized but unissued shares upon vesting of restricted shares during 2006

In estimating the fair value of options granted the expected option life is based on the Companys historical

experience The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model for estimating fair values of options The

weighted average assumptions for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2006 to December 31

2008 were as follows

2008 2007 2006

Expected volatility 33.80% 23.05% 24.78%

Dividend yield 3.09% 1.57% 1.53%

Risk-free interest rate 1.63% 3.50% 4.53%

Expected option life 4.5 4.3 4.4

Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year 9.85 $14.33 $14.72

As of December 31 2008 total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to nonvested stock options

and restricted shares was $9371 which is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of

approximately 37 months
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE STOCK PLANS continued

The following table summarizes nonvested stock options tandem appreciation rights TARs and restricted

shares for the year ended December 31 2008

December 31 2008

Number of Weighted

Options TARs Average Fair

and Restricted Value at

Shares Grant Date

Balance at beginning of year 453186 $21.71

Granted 316264 $17.03

Vested 227616 $13.29

Forfeited 17251 $17.38

Balance at end of year 524583 $22.96

The aggregate intrinsic value of awards outstanding at December 31 2008 based on the Companys closing stock

price of $50.93 as of the last business day in the year ended December 31 2008 which would have been received by

the optionees had all awards been exercised on that date was $19423 The aggregate intrinsic value of awards

exercisable at December 31 2008 based on the Companys closing stock price of $50.93 as of the last business day

in the year ended December 31 2008 which would have been received by the optionees had all awards been

exercised on that date was $16890 The total intrinsic value of awards exercised during 2008 and 2007 was $10366

and $15413 respectively Inthnsic value is the amount by which the fair value of the underlying stock exceeds the

exercise price of the awards

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R the Company presented all tax benefits resulting from the exercise of stock

options as operating cash inflows in the consolidated statements of cash flows in accordance with the provisions of

the Emerging Issues Task Force EITF Issue No 00-15 Classification in the Statement of Cash Flows of the

Income Tax Benefit Received by Company upon Exercise of Nonqualified Employee Stock Option

SFAS 123R requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized for those

options to be classified as financing cash inflows rather than operating cash inflows on prospective basis This

amount was $3728 $4289 and $5243 for 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively and is shown as Tax benefit from the

exercise of stock options in the consolidated statement of cash flows

The following table summarizes information about awards outstanding as of December 31 2008

Outstanding Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Exercise Price Number of Average Number of Average Average

Range Awards Exercise Price Awards Exercise Price Remaining Life

$13.00-$34.99 351381 $23.12 351381 $23.12 3.8

$35.00 $39.99 568342 $37.75 535028 $37.62 6.2

Over $40.00 796294 $56.69 258375 $64.04 8.2

1716017 1144784 6.6

The 1995 Lincoln Stock Purchase Plan provides employees the ability to purchase open market shares on

commission-free basis up to limit of ten thousand dollars annually Under this plan 400000 shares have been

authorized to be purchased There were 1085 6843 and 1726 shares purchased in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively under this plan
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE RATIONALIZATION AND ASSET IMPAIRMENT

In the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company recorded rationalization charges of $2447 pre-tax and asset

impairment charges totaling $16924 pre-tax that are recognized on the income statement under the caption

Rationalization and asset impairment charges gain

The Company took various actions designed to align resources to current market conditions during the fourth

quarter of 2008 The actions are expected to affect 65 employees in various European businesses and 67 employees

in North American businesses The implementation of these actions will be substantially completed by March 31

2009 The Company expects the total cost of these actions to be $2746 pre-tax of which $2447 pre-tax was

recorded at December 31 2008 The costs relate primarily to employee severance costs that will be paid by the end

of 2009

The Company is taking additional cost cutting measures throughout its global operations including voluntary

separation incentive program covering certain U.S.-based employees as announced on February 2009 The

Company expects to record pre-tax rationalization charge between $10 million and $12 million in the first quarter

of 2009

In the fourth quarter of 2008 the Company determined that poor operating results and dampened economic

outlook indicated the potential for impairment at two of its businesses in China Impairment testing determined that

the carrying value of long-lived assets exceeded fair value at one of these businesses and the Company recorded

charge of $2388 pre-tax In addition the carrying value of goodwill at both of these businesses exceeded the

implied value of goodwill and the Company recorded charge of $13194 pre-tax

The Company also tested indefinite-lived intangible assets and determined that the carrying value of certain

intangible assets in Europe and North America exceeded fair value As result the Company recorded charges of

$524 pre-tax and $818 pre-tax respectively

Fair values of impaired assets were determined using projected discounted cash flows

In 2005 the Company committed to plan to rationalize manufacturing operations the freland Rationalization

at Harris Calorific Limited Harris Ireland In connection with the Ireland Rationalization the Company

transferred all manufacturing from Harris Ireland to lower cost facility in Eastern Europe and in 2006 sold the

facility in Ireland for gain of $9006 pre-tax which is reflected in Selling general and administrative expenses

total of 66 employees were impacted by the Ireland Rationalization

The Company incurred total of $3920 pre-tax in charges related to this plan of which gain of $188 pre-tax

was recorded in 2007 and charges of $3597 pre-tax and $511 pre-tax were recorded in 2006 and 2005

respectively Charges incurred relate to employee severance costs equipment relocation employee retention and

professional services As of December 31 2007 all rationalization activities were essentially completed The

Company expects to receive approximately $1944 in cash receipts during 2009 upon completion of the liquidation

of the Harris Ireland Pension Plan
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE G-DEBT

At December 31 2008 and 2007 debt consisted of the following

2008 2007

Long-term debt

Senior Unsecured Notes due 2009 interest at 5.89% 30144 30700
Senior Unsecured Notes due 2012 interest at 6.36% 86759 81776

Capital leases due through 2015 interest at 3.58% to 28.00% 3651 3205
Other borrowings due through 2023 interest at 0.00% to 6.00% 2240 2553

122794 118234

Less current portion 31257 905

Total long-term debt 91537 $117329

Short-term debt

Amounts due banks interest at 22.78% 14.00% in 2007 19436 11581

Current portion long-term debt 31257 905

Total short-term debt 50693 12486

Total debt $142230 $129815

Senior Unsecured Notes

During March 2002 the Company issued Senior Unsecured Notes the Notes totaling $150000 through private

placement The Notes have original maturities ranging from five to ten years with weighted-average interest rate

of 6.1% and an average tenure of eight years Interest is payable semi-annually in March and September The

proceeds are being used for general corporate purposes including acquisitions The proceeds are generally invested

in short-term highly liquid investments The Notes contain certain affirmative and negative covenants including

restrictions on asset dispositions and financial covenants interest coverage and funded debt-to-EBITDA as defined

in the Notes Agreement ratios As of December 31 2008 the Company was in compliance with all of its debt

covenants During March 2007 the Company repaid the $40000 Series Notes which had matured reducing the

total balance outstanding of the Notes to $110000

The maturity and interest rates of the Notes outstanding at December 31 2008 are as follows in thousands

Amount

Due Matures Interest Rate

Series $30000 March 2009 5.89%

Series $80000 March 2012 6.36%

During March 2002 the Company entered into floating rate interest rate swap agreements totaling $80000 to

convert portion of the Notes outstanding from fixed to floating rates These swaps were designated as fair value

hedges and as such the gain or loss on the derivative instrument as well as the offsetting gain or loss on the hedged

item attributable to the hedged risk were recognized in earnings Net payments or receipts under these agreements

were recognized as adjustments to interest expense In May 2003 these swap agreements were terminated The gain

of $10613 on the termination of these swaps was deferred and is being amortized as an offset to interest
expense

over the remaining life of the Notes The amortization of this gain reduced interest expense by $958 in 2008 $1121

in 2007 and $2117 in 2006 and is expected to reduce annual interest
expense by $313 in 2009 At December 31

2008 $755 remains to be amortized of which $107 is recorded in Current portion of long-term debt and $648 is

recorded in Long-term debt less current portion respectively

During July 2003 and April 2004 the Company entered into various floating rate interest rate swap agreements

totaling $110000 to convert portion of the Notes outstanding from fixed to floating rates based on the London

Inter-Bank Offered Rate LIBOR plus spread of between 179.75 and 226.50 basis points The variable rates are
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE DEBT continued

reset every six months at which time payment or receipt of interest will be settled These swaps are designated and

qualify as fair value hedges and as such the gain or loss on the derivative instrument as well as the offsetting gain

or loss on the hedged item are recognized in earnings Net payments or receipts under these agreements are

recognized as adjustments to interest expense

The fair value of the swaps is recorded in Other current assets and Other non-current assets with corresponding

offsets in Current portion of long-term debt and Long-term debt less current portion respectively The fair

value of these swaps at December 31 2008 and 2007 was an asset of $6148 and $762 respectively Swaps have

increased the value of the Series Notes from $30000 to $30144 and the Series Notes from $80000 to $86759

as of December31 2008 The weighted average effective rate on the Notes net of the impact of swaps was 4.6% for

2008

On February 20 2009 the Company terminated swaps with notional value of $80000 and realized gain of

$5079 This gain will be deferred and amortized over the remaining life of the Series Note The amortization of

this gain is expected to reduce interest
expense by $1400 in 2009

At December 31 2008 and 2007 the fair value of long term debt including the current portion was approximately

$124446 and $121329 respectively which was determined using available market information and methodologies

requiring judgment Since considerable judgment is required in interpreting market information the fair value of

the debt is not necessarily the amount which could be realized in current market exchange

Revolving Credit Agreement

The Company has $175000 five-year revolving Credit Agreement expiring in December 2009 The Credit

Agreement may be used for general corporate purposes and may be increased subject to certain conditions by an

additional amount up to $75000 The interest rate on borrowings under the Credit Agreement is based on either

LIBOR plus spread based on the Companys leverage ratio or the prime rate at the Companys election

quarterly facility fee is payable based upon the daily aggregate amount of commitments and the Companys

leverage ratio The Credit Agreement contains affirmative and negative covenants including limitations on the

Company with respect to indebtedness liens investments distributions mergers and acquisitions dispositions of

assets subordinated debt and transactions with affiliates As of December 31 2008 there were no borrowings under

the Credit Agreement The Company expects to replace the Credit Agreement prior to its expiration in

December 2009

Capital Leases

At December 31 2008 and 2007 $3651 and $3205 of capital lease indebtedness was secured by property plant

and equipment respectively

Other

Maturities of long-term debt including payments under capital leases for the five years succeeding December 31
2008 are $50549 in 2009 $1318 in 2010 $1284 in 2011 $80813 in 2012 $121 in 2013 and $1242 thereafter

Total interest paid was $13037 in 2008 $11537 in 2007 and $11971 in 2006 The primary difference between

interest
expense

and interest paid is the amortization of the gain on settlement of interest rate swaps realized in 2003

Amounts reported as Amounts due banks represent short-term borrowings of the Companys foreign subsidiaries
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NOTE INCOME TAXES

The components of income before income taxes for the three years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 were

as follows

2008 2007 2006

u.s $223672 $205779 $153968

Non-U.S 76137 81378 84204

Total $299809 $287157 $238172

Components of income tax expense benefit are as follows

2008 2007 2006

Current

Federal 51700 61277 40399

Non-U.S 21880 20313 16049

State and local 6576 6542 2367

80156 88132 58815

Deferred

Federal 8622 711 5859

Non-U.S 1435 3712 2253
State and local 180 712 743

7367 3711 4349

Total 87523 84421 63164

The differences between total income tax expense and the amount computed by applying the statutory Federal

income tax rate to income before income taxes for the three years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 were as

follows

2008 2007 2006

Statutory rate of 35% applied to pre-tax income $104933 $100505 83360

Effect of state and local income taxes net of federal tax benefit 4454 4964 2282

Taxes less than the U.S tax rate on non-U.S earnings

including utilization of tax loss carryforwards losses with no

benefit and changes in non-U.S valuation allowance 6203 11881 15676

U.S tax benefit cost of foreign source income 6888 1151 3064

Resolution of prior years tax liabilities 4309 6818 2421

Other 4464 3500 1317

Total 87523 84421 63164

Effective tax rate 29.19% 29.40% 26.52%

Total income tax payments net of refunds were $72923 in 2008 $83950 in 2007 and $55799 in 2006

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

In July 2006 the FASB issued FIN 48 which clarifies the recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the

financial statement recognition and measurement of tax position taken or expected to be taken in tax return

FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition classification interest and penalties accounting in interim

periods disclosure and transition In addition FIN 48 requires the cumulative effect of adoption to be recorded as an
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NOTE INCOME TAXES continued

adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after

December 15 2006 The Company adopted FIN 48 as of January 2007

The cumulative effects of applying this interpretation were recorded as decrease of $1590 to retained earnings

The Companys unrecognized tax benefits upon adoption were $28997 of which $21602 would affect the effective

tax rate if recognized

In conjunction with the adoption of FIN 48 unrecognized tax benefits were classified as Accrued taxes non

current unless expected to be paid in one year The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to

unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense consistent with the accounting method used prior to adopting

FIN 48 For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 current income tax expense
included $1044 and $135 of

interest and penalties respectively For those same years
the Companys accrual for interest and penalties related to

unrecognized tax benefits totaled $6141 and $4917 respectively

The following table summarizes the activity related to unrecognized tax benefits

2008 2007

Balance at January $29215 $28997

Increases related to current year tax provisions 7646 5755

Increases related to prior years tax positions 2734
Resolution of prior years tax liabilities 4255 5916
Other 1157 379

Balance at December 31 $34183 $29215

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would affect the effective tax rate is $19945 at

December 31 2008 and $18867 at December 31 2007

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S and various state local and foreign jurisdictions With few

exceptions the Company is no longer subject to U.S federal state and local or non-U.S income tax examinations

by tax authorities for
years

before 2005 The Company anticipates no significant changes to its total unrecognized

tax benefits through the end of 2009 The Company is currently subject to an Internal Revenue Service IRS audit

for the 2005 and 2006 tax years and an Italian tax audit for 2005 The Company does not expect the results of these

examinations to have material effect on the financial statements

F-22



LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

NOTE INCOME TAXES continued

Deferred Taxes

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 2008 and 2007 were as follows

2008 2007

Deferred tax assets

Tax loss and credit carryforwards 16918 19743

Inventory 8548 6522

Other accruals 12710 9875

Employee benefits 13502 13856

Pension obligations 63130 1753

Other 16282 16763

131090 68512

Valuation allowance 18295 21421

112795 47091

Deferred tax liabilities

Property plant and equipment 31338 31898

Intangible assets 10998 6794
Inventory 10970 11529
Pension obligations 2052 14458
Other 10314 9000

65672 73679

Total 47123 $26588

At December 31 2008 certain subsidiaries had tax loss carryforwards of approximately $54963 that will expire in

various years
from 2009 through 2024 except for $26350 for which there is no expiration date

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets the Company assesses whether it is more likely than not that

portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized The Company considers the scheduled reversal of

deferred tax liabilities tax planning strategies and projected future taxable income in making this assessment At

December 31 2008 valuation allowance of $18295 had been recorded against these deferred tax assets based on

this assessment The Company believes it is more likely than not that the tax benefit of the remaining net deferred

tax assets will be realized The amount of net deferred tax assets considered realizable could be increased or

decreased in the future if the Companys assessment of future taxable income or tax planning strategies changes

The Company does not provide deferred income taxes on unremitted earnings of certain non-U.S subsidiaries

which are deemed permanently reinvested It is not practicable to calculate the deferred taxes associated with the

remittance of these earnings Deferred income taxes of $285 have been provided on earnings of $1831 that are not

expected to be permanently reinvested

NOTE RETIREMENT ANNUITY AND GUARANTEED CONTINUOUS EMPLOYMENT PLANS

The Company maintains number of defined benefit and defined contribution plans to provide retirement benefits

for employees in the U.S as well as employees outside the U.S These plans are maintained and contributions are

made in accordance with the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 ERISA local statutory law or

as determined by the Board of Directors The plans generally provide benefits based upon years of service and

compensation Pension plans are funded except for domestic non-qualified pension plan for certain key employees

and certain foreign plans Substantially all U.S employees are covered under 401k savings plan in which they

may invest 1% or more of eligible compensation limited to maximum amounts as determined by the Internal

Revenue Service For most participants the plan provides for Company matching contributions of 35% of the first

6% of employee compensation contributed to the plan The Company matching provision was suspended on
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continued

January 2009 as part of the Companys actions to reduce costs in light of current market conditions The plan

includes feature in which participants hired after November 1997 will receive an annual Company contribution

of 2% of their base pay The plan allowed employees hired before November 1997 at their election to receive this

contribution in exchange for forfeiting certain benefits under the pension plan The Company uses December 31

measurement date for its plans

In the first quarter
of 2006 the Company modified its retirement benefit programs whereby employees of its

U.S company hired on or after January 2006 will be covered under newly enhanced 40 1k defined contribution

plan In the second quarter of 2006 current employees of the U.S company made an election to either remain in the

Companys existing retirement programs or switch to new programs offering enhanced defined contribution

benefits improved vacation and reduced defined benefit The Company did not incur significant change in

retirement costs immediately after the change however the Company does expect cost savings in future years as

result of reduced benefits to be accrued for employees hired on or after January 2006

In September 2006 the FASB issued SFAS 158 which requires companies to recognize the funded status of benefit

plan as the difference between plan assets at fair value and the projected benefit obligation Unrecognized gains or

losses and prior service costs as well as the transition asset or obligation remaining from the initial application of

Statements 87 and 106 will be recognized in the balance sheet net of tax as component of Accumulated other

comprehensive loss and will subsequently be recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost pursuant to the

recognition and amortization provisions of those Statements The Company adopted SFAS 158 on December 31

2006 The incremental effects on the Companys balance sheet at December 31 2006 of adopting SFAS 158 were as

follows

December 31 2006

Prior to Effect of

Application of Adopting

SPAS No 158 SFAS No 158 As Reported

ASSETS

Prepaid pensions $112248 $95475 16773

Intangibles net 2406 2406

Deferred income taxes 2872 39380 42252

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Accrued pensions current 10061 8578 1483

Accrued pensions non-current 15871 17546 33417

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 6456 63522 69978

The after-tax amounts of unrecognized actuarial net loss prior service credits and transition obligations included in

Accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31 2008 were $195145 $534 and $85 respectively

The pre-tax amounts of unrecognized actuarial net loss prior service credits and transition obligations expected to

be recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost during 2009 are $24515 $33 and $6 respectively
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The changes in the pension plans projected benefit obligations were as follows

2008 2007

Obligation at January $699129 $696952

Service cost 16501 17829

Interest cost 42615 40621

Participant contributions 550 476

Plan amendments 20

Acquisitions 2045

Actuarial loss gain 15372 27751

Benefit payments 38970 34129

Settlements --- 2539
Curtailments 14 142

Currency translation 13715 5747

Obligation at December 31 $721467 $699129

The changes in fair value of the pension plans assets were as follows

2008 2007

Fair value of plan assets at January 715072 $678826

Actual return on plan assets 159522 51856

Employer contributions 23810 13031

Participant contributions 550 476

Benefit payments 34237 31782

Settlements 2466

Currency translation 12898 5131

Fair value of plan assets at December 31 532775 $715072

The funded status of the pension plans was as follows

Funded status plan assets less than greater than projected benefit

obligations $188692 15943

Unrecognized net loss 312071 84822

Unrecognized prior service cost 917 820

Unrecognized transition assets net 109 154

Net amount recognized 122571 $100099

The projected benefit obligation accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for the U.S pension

plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $670243 $635433 and $491367

respectively as of December 31 2008 and $22467 $19050 and $0 respectively as of December 31 2007 The

projected benefit obligation accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for the non-U.S pension

plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets were $39362 $37208 and $26841 respec

tively as of December 31 2008 and $52976 $49592 and $42512 respectively as of December 31 2007 The total

accumulated benefit obligation for all plans was $685565 as of December 31 2008 and $661658 as of

December 31 2007
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NOTE RETIREMENT ANNUITY AND GUARANTEED CONTINUOUS EMPLOYMENT PLANS

continued

The components of total pension expense were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Service cost benefits earned during the
year 16501 17829 18686

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 42615 40621 38160

Expected return on plan assets 56954 55943 50456

Amortization of transition assets 10 10 10

Amortization of prior service cost 60 65 621

Amortization of net loss 1636 4615 11056

Settlement/curtailment losses gains 745 937 151

Net pension cost of defined benefit plans 4613 6260 17926

Multi-employer plans 1509 1725 1237

Defined contribution plans 8471 8590 6130

Total net pension expense 14593 16575 25293

The Company is in the process of terminating pension plan as part of the Ireland Rationalization For further

discussion see Note The Company expects to receive $1944 in 2009 upon final settlement gain of $816 was

recognized in 2007 related to the curtailment and partial settlement of this plan

The amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets were composed of

Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007

Prepaid pensions 2716 48897

Accrued pension liability current 3248 3790

Accrued pension liability long-term 188160 29164

Accumulated other comprehensive loss excluding tax effects 311263 84156

Net amount recognized in the balance sheets 122571 $100099

Weighted average assumptions used to measure the benefit obligation for the Companys significant defined benefit

plans as of December 31 2008 and 2007 were as follows

2008 2007

Discount rate 6.2% 6.3%

Rate of increase in compensation 4.1% 4.0%

Weighted average assumptions used to measure the net periodic benefit cost for the Companys significant defined

benefit plans as of December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 were as follows

2008 2007 2006

Discount rate 6.3% 5.9% 5.6%

Rate of increase in compensation 4.1% 4.1% 4.0%

Expected return on plan assets 8.2% 8.4% 8.3%
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continued

To develop the discount rate assumption to be used for U.S plans the Company refers to the yield derived from

matching projected pension payments with maturities of portfolio of available non-callable bonds rated AA- or

better The expected long-term rate of return assumption is based on the weighted average expected return of the

various asset classes in the plans portfolio and the targeted allocation of plan assets The asset class return is

developed using historical asset return performance as well as current market conditions such as inflation interest

rates and equity market performance The rate of compensation increase is determined by the Company based upon

annual reviews

The primary objective of the pension plans investment policy is to ensure sufficient assets are available to provide

benefit obligations when such obligations mature Investment management practices must comply with ERISA or

any other applicable regulations and rulings The overall investment strategy for the defined benefit pension plans

assets is to achieve rate of return over normal business cycle relative to an acceptable level of risk that is

consistent with the long-term objectives of the portfolio The assumptions used to determine the expected return on

assets for the U.S plans at December 31 2008 were as follows

Percentage of
Weighted Average

Target
Plan Assets at

Expected

Allocation
December 31 Long-Term

Asset Category 2009 2008 2007 Rate of Return

Equity securities 60% 70% 52% 65% 9.3% 10.0%

Debt securities 30% 40% 48% 35% 5.5% 7.1

Total 100% 100% 100% 8.25%

Actual and expected employer contributions for the U.S plans are as follows

2009 expected $30000

2008 20000

2007 10000

The actual amounts to be contributed to the pension plans in 2009 will be determined at the Companys discretion

Contributions by participants to certain non-U.S plans were $550 and $476 for the years ended December 31 2008

and 2007 respectively

Expected future benefit payments for the U.S plans are as follows

2009 37410

2010 37044

2011 40514

2012 47683

2013 42522

2014 through 2018 243409

The Company maintains domestic unfunded supplemental executive retirement plan SERP under which non

qualified supplemental pension benefits are paid to certain employees in addition to amounts received under the

Companys qualified retirement plan which is subject to IRS limitations on covered compensation The annual cost

of this program has been included in the determination of total net pension expense shown above and was $2598

$2411 and $2329 in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The projected benefit obligation associated with this plan
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continued

is also included in the pension disclosure shown above and was $18764 $19195 and $18644 at December 31

2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

The Company participates in multi-employer plans for several of its operations in Europe Pension expense for these

plans is recognized as contributions are funded

The Company does not have and does not provide for any postretirement or postemployment benefits other than

pensions and certain non-U.S statutory termination benefits

The Cleveland Ohio area operations have Guaranteed Continuous Employment Plan covering substantially all

employees which in general provides that the Company will provide work for at least 75% of
every

standard work

week presently 40 hours This plan does not guarantee employment when the Companys ability to continue

normal operations is seriously restricted by events beyond the control of the Company The Company has reserved

the right to terminate this plan effective at the end of calendar year by giving notice of such termination not less

than six months prior to the end of such year

NOTE SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Companys primary business is the design and manufacture of arc welding and cutting products manufacturing

full line of arc welding equipment consumable welding products and other welding and cutting products The

Company manages its operations by geographic location and has two reportable segments North America and

Europe and combines all other operating segments as Other Countries Other Countries includes results of

operations for the Companys businesses in Argentina Australia Brazil Colombia Indonesia Mexico Peoples

Republic of China Taiwan Venezuela and Vietnam Each operating segment is managed separately because each

faces distinct economic environment different customer base and varying level of competition and market

conditions Segment performance and resource allocation is measured based on income before interest and income

taxes The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in Note Significant

Accounting Policies
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Financial information for the reportable segments follows

North Other

America Europe Countries Eliminations Consolidated

For the year ended December 31 2008

Net sales to unaffiliated customers $1451333 $576945 $450853 $2479131

Inter-segment sales 114686 25612 10590 150888

Total $1566019 $602557 $461443 150888 $2479 31

Income before interest and income taxes 224706 55407 22591 415 303119

Interest income 8845

Interest expense 12155

Income before income taxes 299809

Total assets $1097716 $470288 $402275 $251474 $1718805

Equity investments in affiliates 3288 13806 45264 62358

Capital expenditures 3785 15226 19349 72426

Depreciation and amortization 33815 12401 10709 56925

For the year ended December 31 2007

Net sales to unaffiliated customers $1401393 $510514 $368877 $2280784

Inter-segment sales 99227 24156 11645 135028

Total $1500620 $534670 $380522 $135028 $2280784

Income before interest and income taxes 211092 63170 18578 2547 290293

Interest income 8294

Interest expense 11430

Income before income taxes 287157

Total assets 988651 $452648 $343532 $139535 $1645296

Equity investments in affiliates 2782 16149 40792 59723

Capital expenditures 26839 16069 18725 61633

Depreciation and amortization 33564 10752 8294 52610

For the year ended December 31 2006

Net sales to unaffiliated customers $1305472 $372308 $294135 $1971915

Inter-segment sales 91770 23787 16326 131883

Total $1397242 $396095 $310461 $131883 $1971915

Income before interest and income taxes 172613 46659 25851 2674 242449

Interest income 5876

Interest expense 10153

Income before income taxes 238172

Total assets 872864 $390733 $273781 $142799 $1394579

Equity investments in affiliates 2374 12834 33754 48962

Capital expenditures 37269 19777 18956 76002

Depreciation and amortization 33135 7993 6697 47825
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In 2008 the North America segment includes charge of $501 pre-tax for rationalization actions and charge of

$818 pre-tax for the impairment of an intangible asset The Europe segment includes charge of $1946 pre-tax

for rationalization actions and charge of $524 pre-tax for the impairment of an intangible asset The Other

Countries segment includes charge of $15582 pre-tax for the impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets

In 2007 the Europe segment includes credit to rationalization charges of $188 pre-tax In 2006 the Europe

segment includes rationalization charges of $3478 pre-tax and gain of $9006 pre-tax on the sale of the facility

in Ireland See Note

Inter-segment sales between reportable segments are recorded at cost plus an agreed upon intercompany profit

which approximates an arms length price and are eliminated in consolidation Export sales excluding inter

company sales from the United States were $242312 in 2008 $194476 in 2007 and $154111 in 2006 No

individual customer comprised more than 10% of the Companys total revenues for any of the three
years

ended

December 31 2006 to December 31 2008

The geographic split of the Companys net sales based on the location of the customer and property plant and

equipment were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Net sales

United States $1072593 $1064113 $1004786

Foreign countries 1406538 1216671 967129

Total $2479131 $2280784 $1971915

Property plant and equipment

United States 169764 167659 178717

Foreign countries 259469 263738 212429

Eliminations 1331 1453 1628

Total 427902 429944 389518

Net sales derived from customers and property plant and equipment in any individual foreign country were not

material

NOTE ACQUISITIONS

On October 2008 the Company acquired 90% interest in leading Brazilian manufacturer of brazing products

for approximately $24000 in cash and assumed debt The newly acquired company based in Sao Paulo will be

operated as Harris Soldas Especiais S.A This acquisition expands the Companys brazing product line and

increases the Companys presence in the South American market Annual sales at the time of the acquisition were

approximately $30000

On April 2008 the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of Electro-Arco S.A Electro-Arco

privately held manufacturer of welding consumables headquartered near Lisbon Portugal for approximately

$24000 in cash and assumed debt This acquisition adds to the Companys European consumables manufacturing

capacity and widens the Companys commercial presence in Western Europe Annual sales at the time of the

acquisition were approximately $40000

On November 30 2007 the Company acquired the assets and business of Vernon Tool Company Ltd Vernon

Tool privately held manufacturer of computer-controlled pipe cutting equipment used for precision fabrication
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purposes headquartered near San Diego California for approximately $12434 in cash This acquisition adds to the

Companys ability to support its customers in the growing market for infrastructure development Annual sales at

the time of the acquisition were approximately $9000

On November 29 2007 the Company announced that it had entered into majority-owned joint venture with

Zhengzhou Heli Welding Materials Company Ltd Zhengzhou Heli privately held manufacturer of subarc

flux based in Zhengzhou China The Company has contributed $11700 to Zhengzhou Heli Annual sales at the

time of the acquisition were approximately $8000

On July 20 2007 the Company acquired Nanjing Kuang Tai Welding Materials Company Ltd Nanjing
manufacturer of stick electrode products based in Nanjing China for approximately $4245 in cash and assumed

debt The Company previously owned 35% of Nanjing indirectly through its investment in Kuang Tai Metal

Industrial Company Ltd Annual sales at the time of the acquisition were approximately $10000

On March 30 2007 the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of Spawmet Sp 0.0 Spawmet
privately held manufacturer of welding consumables headquartered near Katowice Poland for approximately

$5000 in cash This acquisition provides the Company with portfolio of stick electrode products and the Company

expects this acquisition to enhance its market position by broadening its distributor network in Poland and Eastern

Europe Annual sales at the time of the acquisition were approximately $5000

On October 31 2006 the Company acquired all of the outstanding stock of Metrode Products Ltd Metrode
privately held manufacturer of specialty welding consumables headquartered near London England for approx

imately $25000 in cash The Company expects this acquisition to provide high quality innovative solutions for

many high-end specialty applications including the power generation and petrochemical industries Annual sales at

the time of acquisition were approximately $25000

Acquired companies are included in the Companys consolidated financial statements as of the date of acquisition

NOTE FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company has various financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents short-and long-term debt and

forward contracts While these financial instruments are subject to concentrations of credit risk the Company has

minimized this risk by entering into arrangements with number of major banks and financial institutions and

investing in several high-quality instruments The Company does not expect any counterparties to fail to meet their

obligations The fair value of cash and cash equivalents approximated book value at December 31 2008 and 2007

respectively See Note for the fair value estimates of debt

Assets and liabilities that are within the provisions of SFAS 157 such as the Companys derivative contracts are

valued at fair value using the market and income valuation approaches The Companys derivative contracts include

interest rate swaps as well as foreign currency and commodity forward contracts The Company uses the market

approach to value similar assets and liabilities in active markets and the income approach that consists of discounted

cash flow models that take into account the present value of future cash flows under the terms of the contracts using

current market information as of the reporting date

SFAS 157 classifies the inputs used to measure fair value into the following hierarchy

Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities or unadjusted quoted

prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active or inputs other than

quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability

Level Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
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NOTE FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

The following table provides summary of the fair values of assets and liabilities under SFAS 157

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2008 Using

Balance as of Quoted Prices in Active Significant Other Significant

December 31 Markets for Identical Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs

Description 2008 Assets Level Level Level

Derivatives net

liability $3216 $3216

Foreign Exchange Contracts The Company enters into forward exchange contracts to hedge foreign currency

transactions on continuing basis for periods consistent with its exposures This hedging minimizes the impact of

foreign exchange rate movements on the Companys operating results These derivative financial instruments

include contracts that qualify for and are designated as cash flow hedges as well as non-designated contracts

The notional amount of outstanding foreign exchange contracts translated at current exchange rates at

December 31 2008 was $100847 of which $35807 related to contracts designated and qualifying as cash flow

hedges to hedge portion of forecasted transactions and $65040 related to non-designated contracts to hedge

balance sheet exposures The notional amount of outstanding foreign exchange contracts translated at current

exchange rates at December 31 2007 was $64246 of which $45362 related to contracts designated and qualifying

as cash flow hedges to hedge portion of forecasted transactions and $18884 related to non-designated contracts to

hedge balance sheet exposures

At December 31 2008 the fair value of the non-designated contracts and the designated cash flow hedges was an

unrealized loss of $4732 and an unrealized gain of $3076 respectively covering transactions expected to occur in

2009 At December 31 2007 the fair value of the non-designated contracts and designated cash flow hedges

represented unrealized losses of $135 and $2898 respectively

Interest Rate Swap Agreements At December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company had interest rate swap agreements

outstanding that effectively convert notional amounts of $110000 of debt from fixed to floating interest rates The

fair value of the swaps was an unrealized gain of $6148 and $762 at December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

Commodity Forward Contracts The Company periodically enters into forward contracts to manage its exposure

to commodity price volatility This hedging minimizes the impact of commodity price movements on the

Companys operating results At December 31 2008 the Companys derivative contracts consisted of aluminum

copper and nickel forward contracts with notional amounts in thousands of pounds of 3125 2925 and 276

respectively At December 31 2007 the Companys derivative contracts consisted of aluminum copper and nickel

forward contracts with notional amounts in thousands of pounds of 2200 1200 and 216 respectively These

derivative financial instruments qualify and are designated as cash flow hedges At December 31 2008 the fair

value of these derivative contracts represented an unrealized loss of $7708 of which $6838 relates to transactions

expected to occur in 2009 At December 31 2007 the fair value of these derivative contracts represented an

unrealized loss of $1523

For the three years ended December 31 2008 hedge ineffectiveness was immaterial

NOTE OPERATING LEASES

The Company leases sales offices warehouses and distribution centers transportation equipment office equipment

and data processing equipment Such leases some of which are noncancelable and in many cases include

renewals expire at various dates The Company pays most maintenance insurance and taxes relating to leased

assets Rental expense was $14679 in 2008 $13883 in 2007 and $11613 in 2006
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At December 31 2008 total future minimum lease payments for noncancelable operating leases were $11045 in

2009 $6708 in 2010 $5179 in 2011 $3830 in 2012 $2945 in 2013 and $6186 thereafter

NOTE CONTINGENCIES

The Company like other manufacturers is subject from time to time to variety of civil and administrative

proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business Such claims and litigation include without limitation

product liability claims and health safety and environmental claims some of which relate to cases alleging asbestos

and manganese induced illnesses The claimants in the asbestos and manganese cases seek compensatory and

punitive damages in most cases for unspecified amounts The Company believes it has meritorious defenses to

these claims and intends to contest such suits vigorously Although defense costs remain significant all other costs

associated with these claims including indemnity charges and settlements have been immaterial to the Companys

consolidated financial statements Based on the Companys historical experience in litigating these claims

including significant number of dismissals summary judgments and defense verdicts in many cases and

immaterial settlement amounts as well as the Companys current assessment of the underlying merits of the

claims and applicable insurance the Company believes resolution of these claims and proceedings individually or

in the aggregate exclusive of defense costs will not have material adverse impact upon the Companys

consolidated financial statements

The Company has provided guarantee on loans for an unconsolidated joint venture of approximately $6733 at

December 31 2008 The guarantee is provided on four separate loan agreements Two loans are for $2000 each

one which matures in March 2009 and the other maturing in May 2009 The other two loans mature in July 2010

one for $1806 and the other for $927 The loans were undertaken to fund the joint ventures working capital and

capital expansion needs The Company would become liable for any unpaid principal and accrued interest if the

joint venture were to default on payment at the respective maturity dates The Company believes the likelihood is

remote that material payment will be required under these arrangements based on the current financial condition of

the joint venture

NOTE 0- QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA UNAUDITED

First Second Third Fourth

2008

Net sales $620227 $699826 $632892 $526186

Gross profit 177451 204714 196878 141108

Income before income taxes 78991 95100 92882 32836

Net income 53477 70128 69211 19470

Basic earnings per share 1.25 1.64 1.62 0.46

Diluted earnings per share 1.24 1.62 1.60 0.46

2007

Net sales $549043 $586638 $564824 $580279

Gross profit 158216 168668 159741 160941

Income before income taxes 68965 78521 70107 69564

Net income 48000 55249 49978 49509

Basic earnings per share 1.12 1.29 1.16 1.15

Diluted earnings per share 1.11 1.27 1.15 1.14
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The quarter ended December 31 2008 includes charge of $2447 $1698 after-tax relating to the Companys
rationalization programs designed to align the business to current market conditions and $16924 $16615 after-

tax in asset impairment charges including $13194 of goodwill impairment with no tax benefit $2388 in

impairment of long-lived assets with no tax benefit and 1342 $1033 after-tax in impairment of intangible assets

See Note to the Companys Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion

The quarter ended March 31 2007 includes charges relating to the Companys European rationalization program of

$396 $396 after-tax The quarter ended December 31 2007 includes gain of $584 $503 after-tax related to such

program See Note

The quarterly earnings per share EPS amounts are each calculated independently Therefore the sum of the

quarterly EPS amounts may not equal the annual totals
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SCHEDULE II- VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

In thousands

Additions

Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance

Beginning of Costs and Other at End

Description Period Expenses Accounts Deductions of Period

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Year ended December 31 2008 $7424 $3986 $735 $3002 $7673

Year ended December 31 2007 $8484 $3115 630 $4805 $7424

Year ended December 31 2006 $7583 $3255 325 $2679 $8484

Currency translation adjustment

Uncollectible accounts written-off net of recoveries
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC HOLDINGS INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

The Companys subsidiaries and joint ventures are listed in the following table

Country of Percent

Name Incorporation Ownership

Arriendos S.A Chile 50

Electro-Arco S.A Portugal 100

Harris Calorific GmbH Germany 100

Harris Calorific International Sp 0.0 Poland 100

Harris Calorific Sr.
Italy

100

Harris Euro S.L Spain 100

Harris Soldas Especiais S.A Brazil 90

Inversiones LyL S.A Chile 50

J.W Harris Co Inc United States 100

Kaynak Teknigi Sanayi ye Ticaret A.S Turkey 50

Kuang Tai Metal Industrial Co Ltd Taiwan 35

Lincoln Electirc Bester S.A Poland 100

Lincoln Electric U.K Ltd United Kingdom 100

Lincoln Electric Argentina S.A Argentina 100

Lincoln Electric Company India Private Limited India 100

Lincoln Electric Company of Canada LP Canada 100

Lincoln Electric do Brasil Industria Comercio Ltda Brazil 100

Lincoln Electric Europe B.V The Netherlands 100

Lincoln Electric Europe S.L Spain 100

Lincoln Electric France S.A.S France 100

Lincoln Electric Heli Zhengzhou Welding Materials Company Ltd China 60

Lincoln Electric International Holding Company United States 100

Lincoln Electric Italia S.r.l Italy 100

Lincoln Electric Manufactura S.A de C.V Mexico 100

Lincoln Electric Maquinas de R.L de C.V Mexico 100

Lincoln Electric Mexicana S.A de C.V Mexico 100

Lincoln Electric North America Inc United States 100

Lincoln Electric Venezuela C.A Venezuela 100

Lincoln Global Holdings LLC United States 100

Lincoln Global Inc United States 100

Lincoln Smitweld B.V The Netherlands 100

Lincoln Soldaduras de Colombia Ltda Colombia 100

Lincoln Soldaduras de Venezuela C.A Venezuela 100

Lincoln-KD S.A Spain 100

Metrode Products Limited United Kingdom 100

Nanjing Kuang Tai Welding Material Co Ltd China 100

PT Lincoln Electric Indonesia Indonesia 78

Smart Force LLC United States 100

Tenwell Development Pte Ltd Singapore 21

The Lincoln Electric Inner Mongolia Welding Co Ltd China 70

The Lincoln Electric Company United States 100

The Lincoln Electric Company Asia Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore 100

The Lincoln Electric Company Australia Proprietary Limited Australia 100

The Lincoln Electric Company New Zealand Limited New Zealand 100

The Shanghai Lincoln Electric Co Ltd China 95

Uhrhan Schwill Schweisstechnik GmbH Germany 100

Vernon Tool Co Ltd United States 100

Welding Cutting Tools Accessories LLC United States 100

Wytworni Materialow Spawalniczych Spawmet Sp 0.0 Poland 100



EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following registration statements of our reports dated

February 23 2009 with respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of Lincoln Electric Holdings

Inc and subsidiaries and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Lincoln Electric Holdings

Inc and subsidiaries included in this Annual Report Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008

Form S-8 Registration Statement of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee

Directors Form S-8 No 333-49976

Form S-8 Registration Statement of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the 1998 Stock Plan including Post-

Effective Amendment No Form S-8 No 333-58305

Form S-8 Registration Statement of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for The Lincoln Electric Company Employee

Savings Plan Form S-8 Nos 333-107114 and 333-132036

Form S-8 Registration Statement of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc. as successor to The Lincoln Electric Company

for The Lincoln Electric Company Employee Savings Plan including Post-Effective Amendment No Form S-8

No 033-64187

Form S-8 Registration Statement of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc as successor to The Lincoln Electric Company

for The Lincoln Electric Company 1988 Incentive Equity Plan Form S-8 No 033-25209 including Post-Effective

Amendment No Form S-8 No 033-25210

Form S-8 Registration Statement of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc as successor to The Lincoln Electric Company

for the 1995 Lincoln Stock Purchase Plan including Post-Effective Amendment No Form S-8 No 033-64189

Form S-8 Registration Statement of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the 2006 Equity and Performance Incentive

Plan Form S-8 No 333-134212

Form S-8 Registration Statement of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc for the 2006 Stock Plan for Non-Employee

Directors Form S-8 No 333-134210

Is Ernst Young LLP

Cleveland Ohio

February 23 2009



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

John Stropki Jr Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc certify

that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 151 and 5d- 15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the

period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants Board of

Directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 23 2009

Is John Stropki Jr

John Stropki Jr

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Vincent Petrella Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Lincoln Electric Holdings

Inc certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements

were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of

and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and Sd-i 5f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the

period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants Board of

Directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process

summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant

role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 23 2009

Is Vincent Petrella

Vincent Petrella

Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer

and Treasurer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Lincoln Electric Holdings Inc the Company for the

year ended December 31 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the

Report each of the undersigned officers of the Company certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted

pursuant to 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that to such officers knowledge

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and

results of operations of the Company as of the dates and for the periods expressed in the Report

Date February 23 2009

Is John Stropki Jr

John Stropki Jr

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

Is Vincent Petrella

Vincent Petrella

Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer

and Treasurer




